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Introduction and Explanatory Foreword
__________________________________________________________________________________

Introduction
Introduction
The South Downs National Park is England’s newest national park. The proposal for a national park for the
South Downs goes back to the original concept of national parks in England in 1947, but it was only in 1999 that
the government announced consultation on its creation, and another decade passed before the idea became a
reality, with the Park formally coming into being on 1 April 2010.
The South Downs National Park covers the South Downs and Western Weald situated in the counties of
Hampshire, West Sussex and East Sussex. The South Downs National Park Authority was established in April
2010. After a transitional year, the Authority became fully operational on 1 April 2011 following the transfer of
its full powers and responsibilities from the South Downs Joint Committee.
The South Downs National Park Authority (SDNPA) is responsible for promoting the purposes of the National
Park and the interests of the people who live and work within it. The work of the Authority is rooted in its
statutory purposes and duty, and in its commitment to engage with local communities, partners and
stakeholders. As a National Park, the SDNPA has statutory purposes as specified in the Environment Act 1995:
•

To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the area;

•

To promote opportunities for the understanding and enjoyment of the special qualities of the Park by the
public.

In addition, the Authority has a duty to work in partnership to foster the economic and social well-being of local
communities within the National Park.
The 2011/12 Statement of Accounts represent the first operational year of the Authority but also include some
transitional costs where projects finished during this reporting period. The Statement of Accounts demonstrates
the overall financial position of the Authority at the end of the 2011/12 financial year.

Explanatory Foreword
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12 (the Code), issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) and cover the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012.
The objectives of financial statements are to provide information about the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Authority that is useful to a wide range of users in making and evaluating
decisions about the allocation of resources.

Significant Changes in Accounting Policies
The Code requires any changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless the Code specifies
transitional provisions that should be followed. A change in accounting policy is applied by adjusting the opening
balance of each affected component of net worth for the earliest period presented and the other comparative
amounts disclosed for each prior period presented as if the new accounting policy had always been applied,
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative
effect of the change.
The Authority has not adopted any changes in accounting policies in the reporting period. The Authority’s
accounting policies are included in a separate section of the Statement of Accounts on pages 52 to 65.

Financial Statements, their Purpose and Relationship between them
The Authority has prepared its financial statements in accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements,
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 8 Operating Segments as interpreted by the Code. The Code specifies the
format of the statements, disclosures and terminology that are appropriate for national park authorities.
The Authority is required to present a complete set of financial statements (including comparative information)
that comprise:

Page 1

•
•
•
•
•

Movement in Reserves Statement for the period;
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the period;
Balance Sheet as at the end of the period;
Cash Flow Statement for the period;
Notes, comprising explanatory information.

The financial statements also include a Statement of Responsibilities which sets out the responsibilities of the
Authority and the Chief Finance Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts.
The Authority uses rounding to the nearest £’000 in presenting amounts in its financial statements; some notes
are rounded to the nearest £ to aid the presentation and understanding of the financial statements.
The financial statements are set out on pages 13 to 50 and are presented as follows:

Core Single Entity Financial Statements:
Movements in Reserves Statement
The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Authority, analysed into “usable reserves” (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and unusable
reserves. The Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services shows the true economic cost of providing the
Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund balance.
The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves shows the statutory General Fund
balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from
National Park grant.

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the
Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves (i.e. those
reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority
is not able to use to provide services (i.e. unusable reserves). This category of reserves includes reserves that
hold unrealised gains and losses where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets
are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement as
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations.

Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows
by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements comprise explanatory information.

Accounting Policies
The accounting policies detail the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Authority in preparing and presenting its financial statements.
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Financial Performance and Segmental Reporting
In 2011/12, the Authority revised the presentation of services for internal reporting purposes. The Authority
reports its financial performance across seven service areas – Chief Executive’s Services, Strategy and
Partnerships, Planning, Operations, Governance, Corporate Services and Corporate Items. These service areas
are classed as “operating segments” of the Authority.
The aim of reporting financial performance at this operating segment level is to enable users of the Authority’s
financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the activities in which it engages and the
economic environments in which it operates.
Details of the individual services included within each of these operating segments are included in note 22
together with the following detailed information on the financial performance of the Authority by operating
segment:

• An analysis of the income and expenditure for each segment which includes those items of income and
expenditure that are reported as part of the Authority’s internal management reporting;
• A reconciliation between the segment reporting analysis and the cost of services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement;
• A reconciliation between the segment reporting analysis and an analysis of total income and expenditure (i.e.
a subjective analysis);
• Information on services included within each operating segment.

2011/12 Financial Position
The Authority set a revised revenue budget of £11.036m for 2011/12 which was funded by National Park Grant
of £11.373m thereby a net revenue budget surplus of £0.337m.
The Authority received gross revenue income of £12.585m in 2011/12, which included the National Park Grant
of £11.373m received from the government. The Authority incurred gross revenue expenditure of £11.263m in
the same period. The net revenue expenditure was £1.322m, a variation of £0.985m when compared to the net
budget (including the National Park Grant) of £0.337m. This underspend represents an 8.93% positive variation
on the total budget.
The following table shows a breakdown of the income and expenditure against budget:
Revised
Bud get

Actual

Variance

£’000

£’000

£’000

Exp end iture:
Employees

4,256

3,117

(1,139)

Premises

603

219

(384)

Transport

191

162

(29)

Sup plies & Services

2,327

3,111

784

Third Party Payments

5,036

4,616

(420)

25

38

13

Capital Financing Costs
Contingency

130

0

(130)

12,568

11,263

(1,305)

(328)

(353)

(25)

(1,179)

(777)

402

(25)

(82)

(57)

Total Income

(1,532)

(1,212)

320

Net Exp en d itu re exclu din g Nation al P ark G ran t

11,036

10,051

(985)

(11,373)

(11,373)

0

(337)

(1,322)

(985)

Total Exp en d itu re
In come:
O ther G rants and Contributions
Planning Fees Income
Investment Interest

National Park G rant
Net Exp en d itu re / (In come)

Note: Figures in brackets denote underspendings or income received in excess of that budgeted.
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The following table summarises, by operating segment, the spending on services, including variations compared
with the budget set by the Authority:
Revised
Bud get
£'000

Operating Segments

Actual

Variance

£'000
218

£'000
207

C hief Executive's Services
1,620
1,689
Strategy and Partnerships
4,685
4,622
Planning
1,552
1,121
Operations
279
259
Governance
2,306
1,907
C orporate Services
376
246
C orporate Item s
11,036
10,051
Total
Note: Figures in brackets denote underspendings or income received in excess of that budgeted.

(11)
69
(63)
(431)
(20)
(399)
(130)
(985)

The following chart shows the net expenditure (excluding the revenue grant of £11.373m) by operating segment
in percentage terms:

The financial performance in 2011/12 indicates the Authority has delivered services within its overall budget by
taking appropriate measures to manage in year risks and pressures. Details of the overall variance of £0.985m
are as follows:

• Direct employee costs underspent by £0.823m as a result of a number of vacancies in permanent posts being
recruited to later than originally anticipated;
• Indirect employee costs underspent by £0.316m in relation to staff training, staff advertising, relocation and
recruitment costs which were lower than originally expected;
• Premises costs underspent by £0.384m due to the review of premises costs as part of the preparation of the
estates strategy and the planning for occupation of the Authority’s main offices (Capron House);
• Supplies and services budgets overspent by £0.784m which is mainly due to the following significant
variances:
o An overspend of £0.914m from the use of interim staff which is mainly offset by the £0.807m
underspend on direct employees resulting in a net overspend of £0.107m on total staffing;
o An overspend of £0.108m in the Collabor8 project from spending occurring within supplies and
services rather than third party payments;
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An underspend of £0.064m on development control professional fees due to fewer planning
applications in the first year being considered by the Authority than anticipated;
o An underspend of £0.156m in respect of volunteers, rights of way and access to land works due to a
lower level of volunteer expenditure than anticipated and delays to rights of way spend whilst the
responsibilities of both the Local Highway Authorities and SDNPA are being agreed;
o An underspend of £0.176m on payments in respect of the Sustainable Communities Fund which will
be carried forward into 2012/13 and used for spending against this fund;
o An underspend of £0.278m on the Major Partnerships Fund which will be carried forward into
2012/13 and used for spending against this fund.
• Third party payments underspent by £0.420m due to the following significant variances:
o The planning policy budget underspent by £0.232m of which £0.089m was from spending occurring
within supplies and services rather than third party payments and the remaining £0.143m, from lower
than anticipated costs for developing local delivery frameworks and commissioning other evidence
required;
o An underspend of £0.052m on the payments to the 15 local planning authorities (LPAs) under the
delegation arrangements; this was due to one LPA delivering some of their 2012/13 efficiency savings
in 2011/12 rather than 2012/13 and the original budget including a small contingency to cover any
additional set up costs occurring after 1 April 2011;
o An underspend of £0.021m within Human Resources in respect of the transactional contract where
these services are currently being provided in house;
o An underspend of £0.087m on the Collabor8 project from spending occurring within supplies and
services rather than third party payments.
• The main significant variations on income budgets were:
o An overspend of £0.402m on the planning applications income budget due to fee income being lower
than expected, both within the National Park and across the wider areas covered by our partner
LPAs;
o An overachievement of investment income of £0.057m due to higher interest rates than expected.
o

Revenue Summary 2011/12
The Authority's net revenue budget after income, for 2011/12 was set at £11.036m. The following chart shows
the sources of funding which was used to meet the net spending on services:

Analysis of Expenditure
The gross revenue expenditure in 2011/12 for services was £11.263m as included within the cost of services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and was spent on the following main expenditure
headings (analysed by the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) heading):
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Further explanation of some of the terminology included in the above chart is detailed below:
• Employee costs include total salaries, employers’ national insurance contributions, employers’ pension
contributions, indirect employee expenses including the adjustments required to realign employee costs to
an IAS 19 basis and Members’ allowances;
• Other Service Costs include:
o Premises costs which include all running costs, expenditure on goods, services and contractors
directly related to property;
o Transport costs which include all costs connected with the provision, hire or use of transport;
o Supplies and Services which includes all direct supplies and services expenditure;
o Third Party Payments which include payments to third party providers of local authority
services (e.g. payments to other local authorities and other bodies);
o Support service charges which include the recharge of management and administration costs
and support services costs (e.g. financial services, human resources, legal services, property
services) to front line services and internal recharges between services.
• Capital Financing Costs are in respect of the depreciation of non current assets.

Analysis of Income
The gross revenue income in 2011/12 for services was £1.130m, as included in the cost of services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The following chart shows the sources of the income:

Note: The above chart does not include the National Park Grant as this is reported outside the cost of services
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Reserves
Putting in place appropriate levels of general reserves is essential to enable the Authority to effectively manage
risk and to provide cover for potential and unforeseen contingencies. The Authority’s General Fund balance
must last the lifetime of the Authority unless contributions are made from future year’s revenue budgets.
The level of General Fund balance held is a professional judgement by the Authority based on local
circumstances including the overall budget size, risks, robustness of estimates, major initiatives being
undertaken, budget assumptions and the levels of other earmarked reserves and provisions. The minimum level
of General Fund balance which is considered to be a prudent level for the Authority given the wider
environment of financial uncertainty in the public sector is set at £0.650m.
The underspend of £0.985m in 2011/12 is included in the Authority’s General Fund balance which stands at
£1.713m. The following table shows the General Fund position:
Total
£'000
(728)

Balances at 1 A pril 2011
C ontribution to balances
N et transfer to earm arked reserves
Balance at 31 March 2012

(985)
0
(1,713)

(650)
Recommended General Fund Balance
The Authority also holds earmarked reserves of £3.421m as at 31 March 2012. Note 7 provides information of
the specific earmarked reserves held by the Authority.

Capital Summary
A capital programme totalling £0.756m was approved in March 2011 which consisted of the purchase of a fleet
of vehicles and the purchase and refurbishment of the Authority’s main offices, Capron House.
The total capital expenditure on these assets was £0.019m compared with the approved budget of £0.756m.
The variance of £0.737m includes slippage (delays) of £0.750m which will be carried forward into 2012/13 to
meet the Authority’s ongoing capital commitments. No current or future resources were lost as a result of
capital investment programme slippage.
The following table details how the capital outturn of £0.019m was funded:
Total
£’000

C apital Outturn

19

Total Funding Requirement

19

Funding:
General and Specific Reserves
Direct Revenue Funding

(6)
(13)

Total Funding

(19)

The purchase of the fleet of vehicles has been deferred pending the outcome of the estates strategy which will
determine the final location of all staff and associated vehicle requirements.
The approved capital programme included £0.670m for the refurbishment of Capron House which was planned
to start whilst the current occupants, Midhurst Rother College, were still in occupancy. However, further
investigations by SDNPA officers had determined that no significant progress could be made without causing
inconvenience to the college. Completion on the purchase is now scheduled for July 2012 with refurbishment
works commencing as soon as it practicable. This slippage of £0.670m in respect of Capron House will be reprofiled into 2012/13 along with the slippage of £1.015m from 2010/11, and will be used to complete the
purchase of Capron House and to undertake the refurbishment works.
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Non Current Assets
The value of the Authority’s non current assets has decreased in the reporting period by £0.019m, from
£0.190m in 2010/11 to £0.171m in 2011/12.
The Authority has purchased £0.019m of non current assets in the year and assets have been depreciated in the
reporting period by £0.038m.
Note 11 to the financial statements provides further information on non current assets held by the Authority.
The Authority did not enter into any new leases as lessor or lessee in the year; therefore there were no
implications on non current assets in respect of this. Note 13 to the financial statements provides details on the
Authority’s leases.

Pensions
Pensions Liability
The Authority’s net liability for future pension payments, as estimated by the pensions actuary, Hyman
Robertson is £0.054m at 31 March 2012.
There has been a movement in the pension scheme asset/liability from a surplus of £0.016m as at 31 March
2011 to a deficit of £0.054m at 31 March 2012. This movement of £0.070m is due to new permanent employees
joining the scheme and the inclusion of a net liability of £0.019m in respect of the transfer of pension liabilities
from the South Downs Joint Committee.
This overall deficit on the pension fund represents the difference between the value of the Authority’s pension
fund assets as at 31 March 2012 and the estimated present value of the future pension payments (i.e. liability) to
which it was committed at that date. The value of the Authority’s pension fund assets has increased from
£0.065m as at 31 March 2011 to £1.219m as at 31 March 2012, an increase of £1.154m. The value of the future
pension payments liability has increased from £0.049m as at 31 March 2011 to £1.273m as at 31 March 2012, an
increase of £1.224m.
The liabilities show the Authority’s long term underlying commitments to pay post employment benefits. These
pension liabilities will be paid out over a period of many years, during which time the assets will continue to
generate returns towards funding the liabilities.
Statutory arrangements for funding the pension deficit mean that the current financial position is robust
although future funding of pension liabilities is expected to add to the financial pressures facing local authorities.
The deficit on the pension fund will need to be made good by increased contributions over the working life of
employees, as assessed by the pension actuary.
The Authority also recognises a reserve for the estimated net pensions liability. Therefore, amounts included in
the Authority’s financial statements in relation to post employment benefits have no effect on the General Fund
balance.
Note 20 to the financial statements provides further information on pension costs.

Investments
The Authority’s treasury management function is provided through a management agreement with Brighton &
Hove City Council.
At 31 March 2012, the Authority had a cash balance of £8.050m of which £2.535m was invested externally and
£5.515m held under the management agreement with Brighton & Hove City Council.
The Authority’s annual investment strategy (AIS) for 2011/12 was approved by the Authority in March 2011.
The AIS gives priority to security and liquidity. Security is achieved by selecting only those institutions that meet
stringent credit rating criteria or, in the case of non-rated UK building societies, have a substantial asset base,
and having limits on the amount invested with any one institution.
For the purpose of determining credit ratings the Authority uses independent credit rating agencies. Rating
criteria is only one factor taken into account in determining investment counterparties. Other factors, such as
articles in the financial press, are monitored and action taken where it is felt the risk attached to a particular
counterparty has or is likely to worsen. Action will include the suspension of a counterparty in appropriate
circumstances. Liquidity is achieved by limiting the maximum period for investment.
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The level of investment has increased in year by £2.373m. The following table shows the level of investments
made as at the Balance Sheet date:
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

£'000

£'000

Ban k curren t accounts

3,171

5,515

Short term deposits

2,506

2,535

Total investments

5,677

8,050

(Increase)/Decrease year on year

(2,373)

Note 23 to the financial statements provides further information on investments.

Further Information
These accounts have been prepared by Brighton & Hove City Council on behalf of the Authority.
Further information about the accounts is available from Brighton & Hove City Council, Financial Services,
King’s House, Hove. In addition, interested members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts
and their availability is advertised in the local press and on the Authority’s website.

Catherine Vaughan CPFA
Chief Finance Officer
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Statement of Responsibilities
___________________________________________________________________________
The Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
(i)

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority that officer is the
Chief Finance Officer;

(ii)

Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;

(iii)

Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer Responsibilities
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA1 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom. The Chief Finance Officer is required to sign and date the Statement of Accounts, stating
that it presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at the accounting date and its
income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2012.
In preparing this Statement of Accounts the Chief Finance Officer has:
(i)

Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

(ii)

Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

(iii)

Complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Chief Finance Officer has also:
(i)

Kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

(ii)

Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I certify that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the South Downs National
Park Authority as at 31 March 2012 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Catherine Vaughan CPFA
Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)
13 September 2012
1

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

Page 10

Certification by Chair
___________________________________________________________________________
I confirm that these accounts were approved by the Audit Committee at a meeting held on 13 September 2012.

Signed on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority

Norman Dingemans
Chair
Audit Committee
Date 13 September 2012
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Core Financial Statements
_________________________
2011/12
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Movement in Reserves Statement
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Movement in Reserves during 2010/11

Note

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into
“usable reserves” (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves. The Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services
line shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund (GF) balance. The
Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

Balance at 31 March 2010

General
Fund

Earmarked

Capital
Grants

Total
Usable

Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority

Balance
£'000

Reserves
£'000

Unapplied
£'000

Reserves
£'000

£'000

Reserves
£'000

0

0

0

0

0

0

(Surplus) / Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(5,262)
0

0
0

0
0

(5,262)
0

0
(1)

(5,262)
(1)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(5,262)

0

0

(5,262)

(1)

(5,263)

1,436

0

(1,250)

(3,826)

0

(1,250)

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis
under Regulations

6

Net (Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves

7

3,098

(3,098)

0

186

(5,076)
0

(186)

(187)
0

0

(5,263)
0

(Increase) / Decrease in Year

(728)

(3,098)

(1,250)

(5,076)

(187)

(5,263)

Balance at 31 March 2011

(728)

(3,098)

(1,250)

(5,076)

(187)

(5,263)

Please note the comparative figure for adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations within Capital Grants Unapplied has been
restated to remove the acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.
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Note

Movement in Reserves during 2011/12
Balance at 31 March 2011

General
Fund
Balance
£'000

Earmarked
Capital
GF
Grants
Reserves
Unapplied
£'000
£'000

(728)

(3,098)

(1,250)

Total
Usable
Reserves
£'000

Unusable
Reserves
£'000

Total
Authority
Reserves
£'000

(5,076)

(187)

(5,263)

(Surplus) / Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(1,336)
0

0
0

0
0

(1,336)
0

0
159

(1,336)
159

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(1,336)

0

0

(1,336)

159

(1,177)

0

0

0

0

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis
under Regulations

6

Net (Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves
(Increase) / Decrease in Year
Balance at 31 March 2012

22

(1,314)
7

329

(323)

0

(985)

(323)

0

(1,713)

(3,421)
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(1,250)

22

(1,314)
6

(22)

137
(6)

0

(1,177)
0

(1,308)

131

(1,177)

(6,384)

(56)

(6,440)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Statement
_____________________________________________________________________________
The C om prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent show s the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance w ith generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the am ount to
be funded from governm ent grant.
Year En ded 31 M arc h 2012

G ross
E xpenditure

G ross
Incom e

Net
E xpenditure

£'000

£'000

£'000

34

0

34

68

(2 9 )

39

10

0

10

398

0

398

607

0

607

385
1 ,0 9 2

0
(3 2 )

385
1 ,0 6 0

781

(1 )

780

3,375

(62)

3,313

Note

Year En d ed 31 M arc h 2011

Con tin u in g Servic es
Con servation of Cu ltu ral
Heritage
Con servation of th e Natu ral
E n viron men t
Recreation Man agemen t an d
Tran sp ort
Promotin g Un derstan din g
Ran ger, E states an d
Volu n teers
D evelop men t Con trol
Forward Plan n in g an d
Commu n ities
Corp orate an d D emocratic
Core
Cost of Servic es

(3 5 ) 8

0

(8 ,5 4 0 )

Fin an cin g an d In vestmen t
In come an d E x p en ditu re
(8 ,5 4 0 ) 9,10 Non -Sp ecific G ran t In come

3,374

(8,636)

(5,262)

(1 )

(3 4 )

(Surplu s) / Defic it on th e
P rovision of Servic es

G ross
E xpenditure

G ross
Incom e

Net
E xpenditure

£'000

£'000

£'000

0

0

0

66

(3 3 )

33

274

(9 9 )

175

717

(2 )

715

1 ,4 9 7

0

4 ,9 1 8
3 ,1 8 5

(7 7 7 )
(2 1 9 )

606

11,263

0

(1,130)

(1 4 )

1 ,4 9 7
4 ,1 4 1
2 ,9 6 6
606

10,133

(8 2 )

(9 6 )

0

(1 1 ,3 7 3 )

(1 1 ,3 7 3 )

11,249

(12,585)

(1,336)

(1 ) 20 A ctu arial (G ain s) / Losses on Pen sion A ssets an d
Liab ilities

159

(1)

159

(5,263)

Other Comp reh en sive In c ome an d Exp en ditu re
Total Comp reh en sive In c ome an d Exp en d itu re

(1,177)

The C ost of Services in the C omprehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent is analysed in
accordance w ith the Service Reporting C ode of Practice (SeRC OP) for consistency and comparability of
N ational Park Authorities.
en d of tex t

C orporate and Dem ocratic C ore includes tw o categories of expenditure; Dem ocratic Representation
and M anagem ent (DRM ) and C orporate M anagem ent costs. DRM includes all aspects of m em bers’
activities and C orporate M anagem ent includes activities that provide the infrastructure that allow s
services to be provided (e.g. the C hief Executive, external audit, corporate level financing and treasury
m anagem ent).
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Balance Sheet
__________________________________________________________________________________
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised
by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves
held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is
usable reserves (i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use). The second
category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services (i.e. unusable
reserves). This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that
hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement under Adjustments between
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations.

190
2

As at 31 March
2012
£'000

Note

As at 31 March
2011
£'000

11

192

Property, Plant & Equipment
Long Term Debtors

171
0

Long Term Assets

171

16 27 Inventories
295 23,24 Short Term Debtors
5,677 21,23 Cash and Cash Equivalents

21
1,084
8,050

5,988

9,155

Current Assets

(912) 23,25 Short Term Creditors
(5) 14 Provisions

(2,771)
(61)

(917)

(2,832)

0

Current Liabilities
20

0

Other Long Term Liabilities

(54)

Long Term Liabilities

(54)

5,263

Net Assets

6,440

(5,076) 15
(187) 16

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

(6,384)
(56)

(5,263)

Total Reserves

(6,440)

Please note that the comparative figures for Property, Plant and Equipment and Short Term Debtors
have been restated to remove the acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which had
been capitalised in error and treat the deposit payment as a payment in advance.
The unaudited accounts were issued on 19 June 2012 and the audited accounts were authorised for
issue on 13 September 2012.

Catherine Vaughan CPFA
Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)
Officer)
13 September 2012
2012
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Cash Flow Statement
__________________________________________________________________________________
The C ash Flow Statem ent shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the
reporting period. The statem ent shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The am ount of net
cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of
the Authority are funded by way of grant incom e or from the recipients of services provided by the
Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been m ade for
resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. C ash flows
arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claim s on future cash flows by providers of
capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.
The Authority uses the indirect m ethod to present its revenue activities cash flows, whereby the net
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or paym ents, and item s of
revenue or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.
2011/12

Note

2010/11
£'000
5,262
605
(1,250)

£'000
Net surplus / (deficit) on the provision of services

1,336

Adjustment to surplus / (deficit) on the provision of services for non
cash movements

1,056

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus / (deficit) on the
provision of services that are investin g and financing activities

0

4,617

21

Net Cash Flows from Op eratin g Activities

1,060

21

Net cash flows from investing activities

(19)

0

21

Net cash flows from financing activities

0

5,677

2,392

Net In crease in Cash and Cash Equ ivalen ts

2,373

0

21

Cash and Cash Eq uivalen ts as at 1 Ap ril

5,677

5,677

21

Cash and Cash Eq uivalen ts as at 31 M arch

8,050

Please note the comparative figures for adjustment to surplus / (deficit) on the provision of services for non cash
movements and net cash inflows from investing activities have been restated to remove the acquisition
transactions in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.

Page 17

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
__________________________________________________________________________________

1

Accounting Policies

The Authority has included a summary of its accounting polices in a separate section of the accounts which can be
found on pages 52 to 65.
There have been no changes to the accounting polices in the reporting period.

2

Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted

The Code has adopted the amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which will need to be adopted
fully by the authority in the 2012/13 financial statements. This is not a change in accounting policy that will require
the publication of a Balance Sheet as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period (i.e. a third Balance Sheet)
in the 2012/13 financial statements.
In October 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures (Transfers of Financial Assets). The amendments replace the previous requirements with
detailed disclosures that are designed to assist the users of the Authority’s financial statements to evaluate the
risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on the Authority’s financial
position. Such transfers are not common transactions for local authorities and the Authority will assess the
disclosure requirements required should this type of transaction occur in the 2012/13 financial year. The
Authority did not have any such transactions in the reporting period.

3

Critical Judgements and Assumptions Made

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Authority has had to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of its policies and reported levels of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions have been based on current trends and other relevant factors that are
considered to be reasonable. These estimates and assumptions have been used to inform the basis for judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, where these are not readily available from other sources.
However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
those assumptions and estimates made.
The Authority includes accounting estimates within the accounts; the significant accounting estimates relate to
non current assets. The Authority’s accounting policies include details on the calculation of these accounting
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are regularly reviewed. Changes in accounting estimates are adjustments of
the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or the amount of the periodic consumption of an asset, that results
from the assessment of the present status of, and expected future benefits and obligations associated with assets
and liabilities. Changes in accounting estimates result from new information or new developments, and
accordingly are not correction of errors. Changes to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
The critical accounting judgements and assumptions made and key sources of estimation uncertainty identified by
the Authority which have a significant effect on the financial statements are:

•

Retirement Benefit Obligations – The Authority recognises and discloses its retirement benefit obligation in
accordance with the measurement and presentational requirements of IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. The
estimation of the net pension asset / liability depends on a number of complex judgements and estimates
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of actuaries is engaged to provide
the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. Changes in these assumptions can have
a significant effect on the value of the Authority’s retirement benefit obligation. The key assumptions made
are set out in note 20;
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•

Provisions – The Authority is required to exercise judgement in assessing whether a potential liability should
be accounted for as a provision or contingent liability. In calculating the level of provisions the Authority also
exercises judgement; they are measured at the Authority’s best estimate of the costs required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The level of the Authority’s provisions are set out in note 14;

•

Property, Plant and Equipment – Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions
such as the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual types of asset, the
expected length of service potential of the asset and the likelihood of the Authority’s usage of the asset;

•

Future Levels of Government Funding and Levels of Reserves – the future levels of funding for National Park
authorities has a high degree of uncertainty. The Authority has set aside amounts in its working balance and
reserves which it believes are appropriate based on local circumstances including the overall budget size,
risks, robustness of budgets, major initiatives being undertaken, budget assumptions and other earmarked
reserves;

•

Classification of Leases – The Authority has entered into a lease arrangement in respect of property assets.
The Authority has exercised judgement in the classification of leases (i.e. operating or finance lease) using
such factors as the length of the lease and rent levels. Details of the Authority’s leases are set out in note 13.

4

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

These accounts were authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer on 13 September 2012. Events taking place
after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date
provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2012, the figures in the financial statements and notes
have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
There were no significant adjusting or non adjusting events which required the amendment of the financial
statements.

5

Agency Services

Under various statutory powers, the authority may agree with other local authorities, water companies and
government departments to do work on their behalf. The authority has the following significant agency
arrangements:

Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Authority acts as an agent of HMRC for the collection of VAT. The Authority has included a net debtor in its
Balance Sheet of £0.163m for the amount due from HMRC at the end of the reporting period.

Payroll Taxes and National Insurance
The Authority acts as an agent of HMRC for the collection of income tax and national insurance on behalf of
employees. The Authority has included a net creditor in its Balance Sheet of £0.072m for the amount due to
HMRC at the end of the reporting period.

Planning Service
During 2011/12, all 15 local authorities whose boundaries fall within the Park provided the majority of the
planning service on behalf of the SDNPA under legal agreements signed between each local authority and the
SDNPA. The net payment to these local authorities in 2011/12 amounted to £2.910m which included £0.778m
income received by the local authorities in relation to application fees.
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6

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustm ents that are m ade to the total com prehensive incom e and expenditure
recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to m eet future
capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a description of the reserves that the
adjustm ents are m ade against:

General Fund Balance
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Authority are required to be
paid and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to be m et, except to the extent that statutory
rules m ight provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and
paym ents should im pact on the General Fund balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with
proper accounting practices. The General Fund balance therefore summ arises the resources that the
Authority is statutorily em powered to spend on its services or on capital investm ent (or the deficit of
resources that the Authority is required to recover) at the end of the financial year.

Earmarked Reserves
The Authority holds a number of earm arked reserves which are used to earm ark resources for
specific purposes. Note 7 provides a breakdown of earm arked reserves.

Capital Grants Unapplied A ccount
The Capital Grants U napplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards
capital projects for which the Authority has m et the conditions that would otherwise require
repaym ent of the m onies but which have yet to be applied to m eet expenditure. The reserve also
holds grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which there are no conditions for
repaym ent attached, where expenditure has yet to be incurred. The balance is restricted by grant
term s as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which
this can take place.
The following table shows an analysis of the m ovem ents included in Adjustm ent between Accounting
Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations within the Movem ent in Reserves Statem ent:
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M ovement in U sable Reserves
G en eral
Cap ital
Cap ital
Fun d
Receip ts
G rants
Balance Reserve U n ap p lied
£'000

£'000

£'000

M ovemen t
in
U n usable
Reserves
£'000

2011/12
ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E CAP ITAL ADJU STM ENT ACCOU NT
Charges for depreciation of non cu rrent assets
(38)
0
0
Capital expenditure charged against the G eneral Fund balance

13

0

0

ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E CAP ITAL G RANTS U NAP P LIED ACCOU NT
Capital gran ts and contributions unapplied credited to the
0
0
0
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

38
(13)
0

A pplication of grants to cap ital financing transferred to the
0
Capital A djustment Account
ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E P ENSIONS RESERVE

0

0

0

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
pen sioners payable in the year

(298)

0

0

298

401

0

0

(401)

ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E ACCU M U LATED ABSENCES ACCOU NT
A mount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total Ad ju stmen ts b etween ac cou n tin g b asis an d
fu n din g basis u nd er regulation s

(56)

0

0

56

22

0

0

(22)

2010/11 Comparative Figures
ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E CAP ITAL ADJU STM ENT ACCOU NT
Charges for depreciation of non cu rrent assets
Capital expenditure charged against the G eneral Fund balance

0

0

0

0

190

0

0

(190)

ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E CAP ITAL G RANTS U NAP P LIED ACCOU NT
Capital gran ts and contributions unapplied credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

1,250

0

(1,250)

0

A pplication of grants to cap ital financing transferred to the
0
Capital A djustment Account
ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E P ENSIONS RESERVE

0

0

0

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

0

0

34

(34)

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
35
0
0
pen sioners payable in the year
ADJU STM ENTS P RIM ARILY INVOLVING TH E ACCU M U LATED ABSENCES ACCOU NT
A mount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total Ad ju stmen ts b etween ac cou n tin g b asis an d
fu n din g basis u nd er regulation s

(35)

(5)

0

0

5

1,436

0

(1,250)

(186)

Please note the comparative figures for capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account have been restated to remove the acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which
had been capitalised in error.
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7

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves
Reserves

The following table shows an analysis of the am ounts included in transfers to or from earm arked
reserves within the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. It sets out the am ounts set aside from the
General Fund balance in earm arked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and
the am ounts posted back from earm arked reserves to m eet General Fund expenditure in 2011/12:
Tran sfers to / from Earmarked Reserves
Balan ce Tran sfers Tran sfers Balan ce Tran sfers Tran sfers Balan ce
at 1 Ap ril
From
To
From
To
at 31
at 31
2010/11
2011/12
2010
2010/11
M arch
2011/12
M arch
2011
2012
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
Planning D elivery Reserve

0

0

(400)

(400)

0

0

(400)

Community G rants Reserve

0

0

(200)

(200)

200

(176)

(176)

Residual Set Up Reserve

0

0

(370)

(370)

0

0

(370)

Heathland Project Reserve

0

0

(29)

(29)

6

(1)

(24)

Carry Forwards

0

0

(511)

(511)

511

(528)

(528)

Planning Risk Man agement
Reserve
Collabor8 Project Reserve

0

0

(600)

(600)

0

0

(600)

0

0

(30)

(30)

0

0

(30)

Major Projects Reserve

0

0

0

0

0

(278)

(278)

Repairs and Renewals Vehicles Reserve
Insurance Reserve

0

0

0

0

0

(63)

(63)

0

0

(50)

(50)

0

0

(50)

Capital Reserves

0

0

(908)

(908)

6

0

(902)

Total Earmarked
Reserves

0

0

(3,098)

(3,098)

723

(1,046)

(3,421)

The Planning Delivery reserve is a short to m edium term reserve set up to reflect the risks around
m aintaining a system of delegated decisions and operations where significant assumptions are being
m ade about projected costs.
The C omm unity Grants reserve is a short term reserve which will be used to provide sm all
community grants, to support comm unity action in the delivery of local and national priorities of the
Park.
The Residual Set U p reserve is a short term reserve to fund any additional costs not included in the
budget. These costs m ay include future pay harmonisation and additional training.
The Heathland Project reserve holds funding received from N atural England to be used on various
Heathland related projects across the Park.
C arry forwards are approved carry forward of budget to m eet future specific costs.
The Planning Risk M anagem ent reserve is a long term reserve which will be used to fund the cost of
public inquiries, high cost decisions incurring specialist legal advice and any planning appeals.
The C ollabor8 Project reserve holds the approved carry forward of European funding to support the
econom ic sustainability and cultural identity of the area.
The M ajor Projects reserve provides funding for specific projects.
The Repairs and Renewals Vehicle reserve will be used to replace existing vehicles as they com e to
the end of their useful live.
The Insurance reserve will be used to cover liabilities under policy excesses and to finance any claims
for sm all risks not insured externally.
The C apital reserves holds resources to fund capital schem es as part of the Authority's capital
program m e.
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8

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

The following table shows an analysis of the am ounts included in Financing and Investm ent Incom e and
Expenditure within the C om prehensive Income and Expenditure Statem ent:
Finan cin g and In vestmen t In come an d Exp en ditu re
2010/11

2011/12

£'000
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets

£'000
(1)

(14)

Interest receivable and similar income

(34)

(82)

Total Fin an cing an d In vestment In come and Exp end iture

(35)

(96)

9

Non Specific Grant Income

The following table shows an analysis of the am ounts included in Non Specific Grant Incom e within the
C om prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent:
Non Sp ecific G ran t Income
2010/11

2011/12

£'000

£'000

National Park grant

(7,290)

(11,373)

Capital grant

(1,250)

0

Total Non Specific G ran t In come

(8,540)

(11,373)

10

Grant Income and Contributions

The Authority receives grants (both from central governm ent and non governm ent bodies) and
contributions, both for revenue and capital purposes.

Government Revenue Grants
Grants received from central governm ent can be either ring fenced for a specific purpose or non ring
fenced.
N on ring fenced governm ent grants are revenue grants distributed by central governm ent that do not
relate to the perform ance of a specific service. The Authority is free to use all of its non ring fenced
funding as it sees fit to support the delivery of local, regional and national priorities in the Authority’s
area. N on ring fenced governm ent grants are shown under non specific grant incom e within the
Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent.
Ring fenced grants are revenue grants distributed by central governm ent that relate to a specific service.
Ring fenced grants are included in the appropriate cost of service within the C om prehensive Incom e
and Expenditure Statem ent.
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The table below shows the governm ent grants received by the Authority and credited to the
C om prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent:
G overn men t Reven ue G ran ts
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Non Ring Fen ced G overn ment G ran ts cred ited to Non Sp ecific G ran t In come
D epartment for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (D EFRA)
(7,290)

(11,373)

Total

(7,290)

(11,373)

Rin g Fen ced G overn men t G ran ts credited to Cost of Services
Natu ral England

0

(86)

Total

0

(86)

(7,290)

(11,459)

Total G overnmen t Revenu e G ran ts

N on Go vernment Co ntributions
The table below shows the non governm ent revenue contributions received by the Authority and
credited to the appropriate cost of service in the C om prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent:
Non G ov ern men t Con tribu tion s
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Non G overn ment Reven u e Contrib u tions cred ited to Cost of Services
Contributions from O ther A gencies / External Bodies

(32)

(173)

Contributions from O ther Local Authorities

(29)

(97)

Total Non G ov ern men t Reven ue Con tribu tion s

(61)

(270)

Ca pita l Grants and Contributions
The Authority did not receive any capital grants or contributions in 2011/12; however, it did receive a
grant of £1.250m in 2010/11 from DEFRA.
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11

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Authority categorises its property, plant and equipm ent into sub categories, nam ely vehicles,
plant, furniture and equipm ent and assets under construction. The following table shows the gross
carrying am ount and the accumulated depreciation at the beginning and end of the period for each
sub category of property, plant and equipm ent:

2011/12

V ehicles, Plant,
Furniture &
E quipm ent

Assets Under
Construction

T otal

£'000

£'000

£'000

Balance at 1 April 2011
G ross carrying amount
A ccumulated depreciation
Net Carrying Amount at 1 April 2011
Capital Additions
A dditions

190
0
190

0
0
0

190
0
190

19

0

19

D epreciation T ransactions charg ed to the Surplus / D eficit on the Provision of Services within the
Com prehensive Incom e and E xpenditure Statem ent

Depreciation charge
Net Carrying Amount at 31 M arch 2012
Comprising
G ross carrying amount
A ccumulated depreciation
Net Carrying Amount at 31 M arch 2012

2010/11 Comparative Figures
Balance at 1 April 2010
G ross carrying amount
A ccumulated depreciation
Net Carrying Amount at 1 April 2010
Capital Additions
A dditions

(38)
171

0
0

(38)
171

209
(38)
171

0
0
0

209
(38)
171

V ehicles, Plant,
Furniture &
E quipm ent

Assets Under
Construction

T otal

£'000

£'000

£'000

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

190

0

190

D epreciation T ransactions charg ed to the Surplus / D eficit on the Provision of Services within the
Com prehensive Incom e and E xpenditure Statem ent

Depreciation charge
Net Carrying Amount at 31 M arch 2011
Comprising
G ross carrying amount
A ccumulated depreciation
Net Carrying Amount at 31 M arch 2011

0
190

0
0

0
190

190
0
190

0
0
0

190
0
190

Please note the comparative figures for assets under construction have been restated to remove the
acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.

Measurement Bases
The Authority uses the following m easurem ent bases for determ ining the gross carrying am ount of
property, plant and equipm ent assets:

•
•

Vehicles, plant and equipm ent are m easured at depreciated historical cost;
Assets under construction are m easured at historical cost.
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Initial ReviewValuations
Query (Capron House)

No valuations of non current assets took place in the reporting period because:
•
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment is held at historic cost and therefore no revaluation of this
category of asset takes place;
•
Assets under construction is measured at historical cost and revaluation only takes place when the
asset becomes operational.
Depreciation Methods
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the expected life of the asset, on the difference
between the book value and any estimated residual value. Depreciation is charged on all property,
plant and equipment assets except land and assets under construction. The Authority does not charge
depreciation in the year of acquisition but does charge a full year’s depreciation in the year of disposal.

Useful Lives
Assets of the same type generally have the same life but there are exceptions for specific assets. Asset
lives for vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are set at five years.

Contractual Commitments
The Authority had entered into a contract for £0.750m for the completion of the purchase of Capron
house. As at 31 March 2012, the outstanding contract value was £0.675m. The remaining payment of
£0.675m will be made in 2012/13. The following table shows the amount of significant contractual
commitments for property, plant and equipment that existed at the Balance Sheet Date:

Scheme Name

Commitments in respect of Property, Plant and Equipment
Description
2012/13 2013/14
£’000

£’000

2014/15
£’000

Other Land and Buildings
Capron House

Completion of Purchase

675

0

0

Capron House

Refurbishment Costs

214

0

0
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Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The Authority incurred £0.019m of capital expenditure in 2011/12. The table below shows the total
am ount of capital expenditure incurred analysed for each category of non current asset together with
the resources that have been used to finance it.
W here capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by
the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the C apital Financing Requirem ent (C FR), a
m easure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed.
The C FR is analysed in the second part of the table. As the capital expenditure has all been funded in
the year the closing C FR is zero.
Cap ital Exp end iture and Cap ital Finan cin g
2010/11

2011/12

£’000
Op en in g Cap ital Fin ancin g Req u irement

£’000
0

0

190

19

190

19

0

0

Cap ital In vestment
- Property, Plant and Equipment

Sources of Fin an ce
- G overnment grants
- Reserves

0

(6)

(190)

(13)

(190)

(19)

Closin g Cap ital Finan cin g Req u iremen t

0

0

In crease / (Decrease) in Capital Fin an cing Req uiremen t

0

0

- Revenue contrib utions

The Cap ital Fin an cin g Requ iremen ts reflec ts th e following
Balance Sh eet items:
Non Current Assets
Capital A djustment Account
Total

190

171

(190)

(171)

0

0

Please note the comparative figures for property, plant and equipment capital investment and non
current assets and capital adjustment account have been restated to remove the acquisition transactions
in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.
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Leases

The Authority classifies leases as either finance leases (i.e. a lease that transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset) or operating leases (i.e. a lease other than a finance
lease).
A uthority as Lessee – Operating Leases
As lessee, the Authority does not have any finance leases; however, it leases office space under an
operating lease with lease periods of between one and two years.
The Authority, as lessee recognises lease paym ents under an operating lease as an expense.
The future m inim um lease paym ents due under non cancellable operating leases in future years are:
Futu re M in imum Lease P aymen ts u n d er Operatin g Leases
31 M arch 2011 31 M arch 2012
£’000

£’000

Not later than one year

79

97

Later than on e year and not later than five years

63

45

0

0

142

142

Later than five years
Total Fu ture M in imu m Lease P ayments

In 2011/12, the Authority m ade lease paym ents of £0.106m (£0.041m 2010/11) in respect of these
leases; the lease paym ents were charged to the relevant cost of services in the C omprehensive Incom e
and Expenditure Statem ent .
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Provisions

The Authority sets aside am ounts as provisions for liabilities of uncertain tim ing or am ount. The
following table shows the level of the Authority’s provisions, together with the m ovem ent during the
reporting period:
P rovisions

Balan ce at
1 Ap ril 2011
£’000

Ad d ition al
P rovision s
M ad e
£’000

2011/12
Amoun ts
U sed

Balan ce at
31 M arch
2012
£’000

U n used
Amou nts
Reversed
£'000

£’000

Sh ort Term P rovision s
A ccumulated Absences

(5)

(61)

0

5

(61)

Total

(5)

(61)

0

5

(61)

The accum ulated absences provision relates to the accumulated compensated absences (e.g. annual
leave and flexi leave) that are carried forward for use in future periods if the current period’s
entitlem ents are not used in full.

15

Usable Reserves

The Authority holds a number of usable reserves, being those reserves that the Authority can use to
provide services subject to the need to m aintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
lim itations on their use. M ovem ents in the Authority's usable reserves are detailed in the M ovem ent in
Reserves Statem ent.
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Unusable Reserves

The Authority holds a num ber of unusable reserves being those reserves that the Authority is not able
to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses and reserves that hold tim ing differences between the accounting basis and funding basis.
The following table shows the m ovem ent on unusable reserves analysed between those am ounts held
for capital purposes and those held for revenue purposes:
Balance as
at 31 M arch
2011

Balan ce as
at 31 M arch
2012

£’000

£’000

Pensions Reserve

(2)

54

A ccumulated Absences A ccount

5

61

Total U n u sab le Reserves H eld for Reven u e P u rp oses

3

115

Capital A djustment A ccount

(190)

(171)

Total U n u sab le Reserves H eld for Cap ital P u rp oses

(190)

(171)

Total U n u sab le Reserves

(187)

(56)

Ca pita l A djustment A ccount
The C apital Adjustm ent Account absorbs the tim ing differences arising from the different arrangem ents
for accounting for the consumption of non current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction
or enhancem ent of those assets under statutory provisions. The C apital Adjustm ent Account is debited
with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancem ent as depreciation, impairm ent losses and
am ortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. The account is
credited with the am ounts set aside by the Authority as finance for costs of acquisition, construction
and enhancem ent.
N ote 6 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the C apital Adjustm ent Account.
The account is m atched by non current assets within the Balance Sheet and therefore is not a resource
available to the Authority. The table below shows the balances on the C apital Adjustm ent Account at
the beginning and end of the reporting period and the detailed m ovem ents in the year:
2010/11

Cap ital Ad justmen t Accou nt

2011/12

£’000

Balan ce as at 1 April

£’000

£’000

0

Reversal of items relatin g to cap ital exp end itu re deb ited
/ cred ited to the Comprehen sive In come an d
Exp end iture Statemen t
Charges for depreciation of non current assets
Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets
consumed in the year

0

(190)

38

0

38

Cap ital fin ancin g ap plied in the year
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

0

(6)

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to
capital financing

0

0

Capital ex penditure charged against the G eneral Fund balance

(190)
(190)

(13)

Balan ce as at 31 M arch

(190)

(19)
(171)

Please note the comparative figure for capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing has been restated to remove the
acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.

Page 29

P ensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the tim ing differences arising from the different arrangem ents for
accounting for post em ploym ent benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Authority accounts for post em ploym ent benefits in the C omprehensive Incom e and
Expenditure Statem ent as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assum ptions and investm ent returns on any
resources set aside to m eet the costs. However, statutory arrangem ents require benefits earned to be
financed as the Authority m akes em ployer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore
shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current em ployees and the resources the
Authority has set aside to m eet them . The statutory arrangem ents will ensure that funding will have
been set aside by the tim e the benefits com e to be paid. The table below shows the balances on the
Pensions Reserve at the beginning and end of the reporting period and the detailed m ovem ents in the
year:
P en sion s Reserve
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Balan ce as at 1 April

0

(2)

A ctuarial gains / losses on pension assets and liabilities

(1)

159

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited /credited to the Surplus /
D eficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditu re Statement

34

298

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in
the year

(35)

(401)

(2)

54

Balan ce as at 31 M arch

The reserve norm ally is at the sam e level as the pensions liability carried on the top half of the
Balance Sheet. N ote 20 provides further inform ation.

A ccumulated A bsences A ccount
The Accum ulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
General Fund balance from accruing for com pensated absences earned but not taken in the year (e.g.
annual leave entitlem ent carried forward at 31 M arch). Statutory arrangem ents require that the impact
on the General Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Accumulated Absences
Account.
The table below shows the balances on the Accumulated Absences Account at the beginning and end
of the reporting period and the detailed m ovem ents in the year:
Accu mulated Absences Accou n t
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

£’000

Balan ce as at 1 April

0

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the
preceding year

0

(5)

A mounts accrued at the end of the current year

5

61

A mount b y which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals b asis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements

5

56

Balan ce as at 31 M arch

5

61
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Related Parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties (i.e. bodies or individuals that
have the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority).
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers of the accounts to assess the extent to which the Authority
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit
another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority. The following paragraphs detail the Authority’s
material related party transactions.

Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Authority and provides the
statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of
grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties. Details
of the grants received from government departments in 2011/12 can be found in notes 9 and 10. Details of the
amounts owed to/from central government are included in notes 24 and 25.

Members
Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies. The total
of Members’ allowances paid in 2011/12 is shown in note 18. During 2011/12, works and services to the value
of £3.110m (£0.634m 2010/11) were commissioned from companies and other local authorities in which
Members have declared an interest. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Authority’s
standing orders. Details of the entities that members are involved with are recorded in the Register of
Member’s Interests which is held by Hampshire County Council.

Officers
Senior officers of the Authority, such as the chief executive and other chief officers have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Authority, including the oversight of
these activities. During 2011/12, Brighton & Hove City Council provided Chief Finance Officer (S151) and
other financial services to the Authority on a contractual basis to the value of £0.455m (£0.301m 2010/11).
Senior officers of Brighton & Hove City Council were in a position to influence financial transactions of the
Authority.

18

Members’ Allowances and Expenses

The Authority paid the following am ounts to M em bers during the year:
M emb er's Allowan ces an d Exp en ses
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

A llowances

90

91

Expenses

17

23

107

114

Total P ayments to M embers

Details of allowances and expenses paid in 2011/12 are published in local newspapers across the
N ational Park area (the Sussex Express, the W est Sussex C ounty Tim es and the Hampshire Chronicle).
Details are also published on the Authority's website www.southdowns.gov.uk.
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Officers’ Remuneration

The Code requires disclosure of remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees. The definition of
a senior em ployee is provided in the Accounts and Audit regulations and includes the chief executive,
together with the m embers of the senior m anagem ent team who report directly to the chief executive or
hold a statutory post, identified by job title. During 2011/12 the senior employee posts of the Authority
were filled by a combination of perm anent appointm ents and interim and agency appointm ents. The interim
and agency arrangem ents are not covered by the C ode's disclosure requirem ents, however in the interests
of transparency the total cost of all appointm ents have been set out in the following table:
Senior M anagemen t Team
P ost

Chief Executive

Natu re of
emp loymen t

P eriod

Full Year
Salary
£'000

A gency

A pril 2011-Jan 2012

Staff member

Jan 2012 - March 2012

D irector of Corporate
Services

A gency

A pril 2011- O ctober 2 011

Staff member

O ctober 2011 - March 2012

D irector of Planning

A gency

A pril 2011 - November 2011

Staff member

Actu al Cost
in 2011/12
£'000
0

131

10 8

22

0

98

77

35

0

94

Novemb er 2011 - March 2012

95

46

D irector of Strategy

Staff member

A pril 2011 - March 2012

87

81

D irector of O perations

Staff member

A pril 2011 - March 2012

67

67

434

574

Total Cost of Senior M an agemen t Team

The following tables shows the actual rem uneration paid to perm anent senior em ployees and other staff.
As appointm ents were m ade during 2011/12, the costs do not equate to full tim e equivalents; the previous
table shows full tim e equivalent costs for these em ployees:

Chief Executive
D irector of Corporate Services
D irector of Planning Services
D irector of Strategy
D irector of O perations
Total

£

0
0
6,600
0
0
6,600

0
0
0
0
0
0

£
18,629
29,533
39,857
68,126
56,912
213,057

Total Remuneration
including Pension
Contributions

£

Pension
Contributions

£
18,629
29,533
33,257
68,126
56,912
206,457

Total Remuneration
excluding Pension
Contributions

Compensation for
Loss of Office

0
0
0
0
0
0

Expense Allowances

P ost H old er Information

£

Salary (including
Fees & Allowances)

Total Remuneration
including Pension
Contributions

Senior Emp loyee Remun eration of P erman ent Ap poin tmen ts - salary b etween £50,000 an d £149,999
p er year
2011/12
2010/11

£
3,707
5,820
6,550
13,333
10,031
39,441

£
22,336
35,353
46,407
81,459
66,943
252,498

Oth er Staff
Natu re of Emp loymen t

2010/11
Nu mber of
Staff

2011/12

Actu al Cost
£'000

Nu mb er of
Staff

Actu al Cost
£'000

Employed

24

258

120

2,346

Interim Staff

21

750

42

910

Secondment

38

352

0

0

Total

83

1,360

162

3,256

Note: All costs include expenses and agency fees, interim staff includes all agency staff and consultants.
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Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Authority m akes contributions towards the cost of post em ploym ent benefits as part of the terms
and conditions of employm ent of its officers. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
em ployees retire, the Authority has to disclose the comm itm ent in respect of the future paym ent of
these benefits at the tim e that the em ployees earn their future entitlem ent.
The Authority participates in the Local Governm ent Pension Schem e (LGPS) adm inistered locally by
W est Sussex C ounty C ouncil. The schem e is a funded defined benefit final salary schem e, m eaning that
the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pension liabilities with investm ent assets.
The Authority uses Hym ans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, to assess the position of
the Authority’s pension fund.

T ransactions relating to P ost Employment Benefits
Post em ploym ent benefits are recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
C omprehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent when they are earned by em ployees, rather than
when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Authority is required to
m ake is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employm ent benefits is reversed
out of the General Fund balance to the Pensions Reserve and reported in the M ovem ent in Reserves
Statem ent.
The following transactions have been m ade in the C omprehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent
and M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent during the year in relation to the Local Governm ent Pension
Schem e:
Tran saction s made in resp ect of the Local G overn ment P en sion Sch eme
2010/11
2011/12
£’000

£’000

Comprehen sive In come an d Exp en ditu re Statemen t
Cost of Services
 Current service cost

(35)

(312)

(1)

(46)

2

60

(34)

(298)

 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus / D eficit for the Provision of
34
Services for post employment benefits
Actu al amoun t charged again st th e G en eral Fu n d Balan ce for p en sions in the year

298

Financin g and In vestmen t In come an d Exp en d itu re
 Interest cost
 Expected return on scheme assets
Total P ost Emp loymen t Benefits ch arged to th e Surplu s / Deficit
on th e P rovision of Services
M ov emen t in Reserves Statement

 Employers' contributions payable to the scheme
Net Adju stmen t to P en sion Reserve

(35)

(401)

(1)

(103)

The cumulative am ount of actuarial loss recognised in the Comprehensive Incom e and Expenditure
Statem ent to the 31 M arch 2012 is £0.153m.

A ssets and Lia bilities in relation to P ost Employment Benefits
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A ssets and Liabilities in relation to P ost Employment Benefits
The following table shows a reconciliation of the present value of the Local Governm ent Pension
Schem e liabilities (i.e. the defined benefit obligation):
P resen t Valu e of the P ension Scheme Liab ilities
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Balance at 1 April

0

(49)

Current service cost

(35)

(312)

(1)

(46)

Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants

(13)

(127)

A ctuarial gains / (losses)

0

(126)

Liabilities assumed in a business combination

0

(613)

(49)

(1,273)

Balance at 31 M arch

The following table shows a reconciliation of the fair value of the Local Governm ent Pension Schem e
assets:
Fair Valu e of th e P en sion Sch eme Assets
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Balance at 1 April

0

65

Expected rate of return

2

60

A ctuarial gains / (losses)

1

(28)

Transfer Value

14

0

Employer contrib ution as per actuary report

35

401

Contributions by scheme participants

13

127

0

594

65

1,219

A ssets acquired in a business combination
Balance at 31 M arch

The expected return on schem e assets of £0.060m (£0.002m for 2010/11) is determ ined by considering
the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investm ent policy. Expected yields
on fixed interest investm ents were based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investm ents reflect long term real rates of return experienced in the
respective m arkets. The actual return on schem e assets in the year was £0.032m (£0.003m for
2010/11).

Local Government P ension Scheme History
The following table shows the present value of the schem e liabilities (i.e. the defined benefit obligation),
the fair value of the schem e assets and the surplus / deficit in the Local Governm ent Pension Scheme:
P ension Sch eme H istory
31 M arch
2011
£’000

31 M arch
2012
£’000

(49)

(1,273)

Fair Value of Assets

65

1,219

Su rp lus / (Deficit) in th e Sch eme

16

(54)

Present Value of Liabilities
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The present value of liabilities shows the underlying comm itm ents that the Authority has in the long run
to pay post employm ent (retirem ent) benefits. Based on the current benefit structure of the Local
Governm ent Pension Schem e and using the roll forward m ethod, the actuarial estim ate of the present
value of funded liabilities as at 31 M arch 2012 is £1.273m which is in respect of em ployee m em bers.
The actuarial estim ate of the present value of liabilities as at 31 M arch 2012 is £1.273m for funded
obligations which includes £1.264m in respect of employee m embers and £0.009m in respect of
deferred pensioners. There were no unfinded obligatiosn as at 31 M arch 2012.
Assum ing no m aterial events such as curtailm ents, settlem ents, restrictions are placed on adm itting new
entrants to the fund or discontinued participation in the fund, the total contributions expected to be
m ade to the Local Governm ent Pension Schem e by the Authority in the year to 31 M arch 2013 will be
in the region of £0.358m .

Basis for Estimating A ssets and Liabilities
Liabilities for the Local Governm ent Pension Schem e have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit m ethod (i.e. an estim ate of the pensions that will be payable in future years
dependent on assum ptions about m ortality rates, salary levels etc).
The following tables show the principal assum ptions used by the actuary as at the Balance Sheet date:
End
P rin cip al Assump tion s
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

Long term expected rate of return on assets in th e sch eme
Equity Investments

7.5%

6.2%

Bonds

4.9%

4.3%

Property

5.5%

4.4%

Cash

4.6%

3.5%

M ortality assu mption s
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
 men

22.7 years

22.7 years

 women

24.2 years

24.2 years

 men

24.3 years

24.3 years

 women

26.4 years

26.4 years

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

Financial assu mp tions
Rate of inflation/pension increase rate

2.8%

2.5%

Rate of increase in salaries

5.1%

4.8%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

5.5%

4.8%

Expected total return on assets

6.9%

5.8%

The following table shows for each m ajor category of the Local Governm ent Pension Schem e assets, the
proportion that each category constitutes of the fair value of the total schem e assets held:
P rop ortion of th e Fair Value of th e Scheme Assets b y Category
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

Equity Investments

77.0%

76.0%

Bonds

14.0%

14.0%

Property

7.0%

9.0%

Cash

2.0%

1.0%

Total

100%

100%
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History of Experience Gains and Lo sses
The following table shows the am ounts of the experience adjustm ents arising on the Local Governm ent
Pension Schem e liabilities expressed as a percentage of the schem e assets at the Balance Sheet date:
Exp erien ce G ains an d Losses
2010/11
£’000

%

2011/12
£’000

%

Experience gains and (losses) on assets

1

1.5

(28)

(2.3)

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities

0

0.0

(124)

9.7

21

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The C ash Flow Statem ent shows the total m ovem ent of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalent funds
during the reporting period. The result of the C ash Flow Statem ent is equal to the m ovem ent of the
cash and cash equivalents on the Balance Sheet.
The Authority uses the indirect m ethod to report its cash flows from operating activities whereby the
net Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or paym ents, and items
of revenue or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and Ca sh Equivalents
The Authority defines cash equivalents as cash flow investm ents of cash surpluses lent to cover cash
shortages and which are no longer than three m onths.
The following table shows an analysis of the com ponents of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash an d Cash Eq u ivalen ts
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

£’000

£’000

Bank current accounts

3,171

5,515

Short term deposits

2,506

2,535

Total Cash and Cash Eq uivalen ts

5,677

8,050
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Reconcilia tio n of the N et Ca sh Flow s fro m O perating A ctivities to the Surp lus or
Deficit on the P rovision of Services
The Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services within the C omprehensive Incom e and Expenditure
Statem ent includes som e transactions which do not result in cash flows, and others which are not
classified as operating activities within the C ash Flow Statem ent (i.e. classified as investing or financing
cash flows). The following table identifies these transactions and reconciles the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the net cash flows from operating activities within the C ash Flow Statem ent:
R econ ciliation of Net Cash Flows from Op erating Activities to th e Surplu s / Deficit on th e
P rovision of Services
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000
5,262

1,336

0

38

912

1,859

(295)

(789)

Increase in inventories

(16)

(5)

Pension asset / liability

(1)

(103)

5

56

605

1,056

(1,250)

0

(1,250)

0

4,617

2,392

Su rp lus on th e P rovision of Services
Ad ju stmen ts to th e Surp lu s on th e P rovision of Services for Non
Cash M ovemen ts
D epreciation
Increase in creditors
Increase in debtors

Contributions to provisions
Ad ju stmen ts for items in clu d ed in th e Surplu s on th e P rovision
of Services th at are Investin g or Fin an cing Activities
Capital grants credited to the surplus on the provision of services

Net Cash Flows from Op eratin g Activities

Please note the comparative figure for increase in debtors has been restated to treat the acquisition
transactions in relation to Capron House as a payment in advance rather that capitalising as a non current
asset.
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Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities relating to Interest
Operating activities within the Cash Flow Statement include the following cash flows relating to interest:
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities relating to Interest
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Interest Received
Ordinary interest received

34

82

34

82

0

0

0

0

34

82

Interest Paid
Interest charge for year

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities relating to Interest

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investing activities within the Cash Flow Statement include the following amounts:
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
2010/11

2011/12

£’000

£’000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment purchased

(190)

(19)

(190)

(19)

1,250

0

1,250

0

1,060

(19)

Other Receipts from Investing Activities
Capital grants received

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Please note the comparative figure for property, plant and equipment purchased has been restated to
remove the acquisition transactions in relation to Capron House which had been capitalised in error.

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities
There were no cash flows from financing activities.
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Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP). Decisions about resource allocation
are taken by the Authority on the basis of budget reports analysed across services. These reports are
prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

• the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (i.e. payment of employer’s pension contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year;

• expenditure on support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to services.
The Authority identifies its principal services (i.e. principal operating segments) as those services whose gross
income and/or gross expenditure is 10% or more of the total gross income and/or gross expenditure of the
reportable cost of services. Services which do not meet this criteria are only reported to ensure that the
reportable segments include at least 75% of the net expenditure within the reportable cost of services; the
prioritisation given to reporting other services which do not meet the 10% or more criteria is by their % of
the net expenditure within the reportable cost of services. Other services not meeting these two criteria are
further considered for inclusion in the reportable segments to assess any added value in relation to the
understanding for the readers of the accounts of the Authority’s financial position. The Authority has opted to
report all of its operating segments.
The Authority does not aggregate any operating segments for reporting purposes.
In 2011/12, the principal operating segments of the Authority are:

• Chief Executive’s Service which includes the cost of the Chief Executive and administrative support;
• Strategy and Partnerships which cover the cost of the communications team, including website support,
partnership delivery and evidence and performance work to support the Authority’s management plan;

• Planning which covers development management, including major planning applications and the management
•
•
•
•

of the service delegation to other local planning authorities. The service also includes planning policy,
including historic buildings, support for the local development framework and minerals and waste;
Operations which cover the activities of the rangers across the Park plus the rights of way officers and the
support of volunteers;
Governance which covers Members allowances and expenses and administrative support;
Corporate Services which cover the support services including human resources, premises, IT,
procurement, finance and audit;
Corporate Items which include the Sustainable Development Fund and Community Grants which are
administered by the SDNPA to support local community projects that have a positive impact on future
generations and take full consideration of social, economic and environmental concerns.

The income and expenditure of the Authority’s principal services recorded in the budget reports for the year
is as follows:
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Service In come an d Expen d itu re An alysis
2011/12

Chief
E xecutive's
Services

Strateg y and
Partnership

Planning

O perations

G overnance

Corporate
Services

Corporate
Item s

T otal

National
Park G rant

T otal

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Employee expenses

62

833

734

822

182

462

22

3,117

0

3,117

O ther service ex penses

145

1,077

4,665

393

77

1,527

224

8,108

0

8,108

Total Expen d itu re

207

1,910

5,399

1,215

259

1,989

246

11,225

0

11,225

0

(1,126)

Fees, charges and other
service income

0

G overnment grants

0

Total Income

0

Net Exp en d itu re

207

(221)

(777)

0
(221)
1,689

0
(777)
4,622

(46)

0

(82)

0

(1,126)

(86)

0

0

0

(86)

(11,373)

(11,459)

(132)

0

0

(1,212)

(11,373)

(12,585)

10,013

(11,373)

(1,360)

1,083

259

(82)
1,907

246

Service In come an d Expen d itu re An alysis
2010/11 Comparative
Figu res

Chief
E xecutive's
Services

£'000

Strateg y and
Partnership

Planning

O perations

£'000

£'000

G overnance

Corporate
Services

£'000

T otal

National
Park G rant

T otal

£'000

£'000

28

£'000
166

10

11

£'000
122

0

£'000
548

0

548

O ther service ex penses

300

380

131

507

107

1,402

0

2,827

0

2,827

Total Expen d itu re

328

546

141

518

229

1,613

0

3,375

0

3,375

Employee expenses

£'000
211

Corporate
Item s

Fees, charges and other
service income

0

(32)

(29)

0

(1)

(34)

0

(96)

G overnment grants

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(7,290)

(7,290)

Total Income

0

0

(1)

0

(96)

(7,290)

(7,386)

(7,290)

(4,011)

Net Exp en d itu re

328

(32)

(29)

514

112

518
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(34)
1,579

0

3,279

0

(96)

Further explanations of the term inology included in the above tables are detailed below:
•
•

•
•

Employee expenses include total salaries, employers’ national insurance contributions, employers’
pension contributions and indirect employee expenses including the adjustm ents required to adjust
em ployee costs to an IAS 19 basis;
Other service expenses include:
• Prem ises expenses which include all running costs, expenditure on goods, services and
contractors directly related to property and land;
•
Transport expenses which include all costs connected with the provision, hire or use of
transport;
•
Supplies and services which include all direct supplies and services expenditure incurred;
•
Third party paym ents which include paym ents to third party providers of local authority
services (e.g. paym ents to other Local Authorities and other bodies);
•
Support service charges which include the recharge of m anagem ent and adm inistration costs
and support service costs (e.g. financial services, hum an resources, legal services, property
services) to front line services and internal recharges between services.
Fees, charges and other service incom e includes contributions received from other local authorities
and other bodies;
Governm ent grants covers all grants received from central governm ent.

Reconcilia tion of Service Income an d Expend iture to the Cost o f Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service incom e and expenditure relate to the
am ounts included in the C om prehensive Income and Expenditure Statem ent:

Net expenditure in the service analysis
A mounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not
reported to management in the service analysis
A mounts included in the service analysis which fall outside the cost of
services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services in th e Comprehen sive In come an d Exp en diture
Statement
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2010/11

2011/12

£'000

£'000

(4,011)

(1,360)

0

38

7,324

11,455

3,313

10,133

Reconciliatio n to Subjective A nalysis
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service incom e and expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services included in the C om prehensive Income and Expenditure Statem ent:

2011/12

Recon ciliation to Su b jective An alysis
Corporate
Amou n ts not
Amoun ts
Rep orted to
In clud ed in
M an agement
Service
Service
for Decision Allocation of
An alysis
An alysis
M akin g
Recharges
£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Employee expenses

3,117

0

0

O ther service expenses
Sup port service and management and
administration recharges
D epreciation of non current assets

8,108
0

0
0

0
2,910

0

0

38

0
11,225

0
0

0
2,948

0
(2,910)

0
0

0
(2,910)

0
2,910

Interest payments
Total Exp en d itu re
Fees, charges and other service income
Sup port service and management and
administration recharges
Interest and investment income
G overnment grants
Total Income
Su rp lus / Deficit on th e P rovision of
Services

(1,044)
0
(82)

82

(11,459)
(12,585)

11,373
11,455

(1,360)

11,455
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0
0
(2,910)
38

0
0
(2,910)
0

0
0
2,910
0

Cost of
Services

Corporate
Amoun ts

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

3,117

(14)

3,103

8,108
0

0
0

8,108
0

38

0

38

0
11,263
(1,044)
0
0

0
(14)
0
0

0
11,249
(1,044)
0

(82)

(82)

(86)
(1,130)

(11,373)
(11,455)

(11,459)
(12,585)

10,133

(11,469)

(1,336)

2010/11 Comparative Figures

Recon ciliation to Su b jective An alysis
Corporate
Amou n ts not
Amoun ts
Rep orted to
In clud ed in
M an agement
Service
Service
for Decision Allocation of
An alysis
An alysis
M akin g
Recharges
£'000

Employee expenses
O ther service expenses
Sup port service and management and
administration recharges
D epreciation of non current assets
Interest payments
Total Exp en d itu re
Fees, charges and other service income
Sup port service and management and
administration recharges
Interest and investment income
G overnment grants
Total Income
Su rp lus / Deficit on th e P rovision of
Services

£'000

£'000

£'000

Corporate
Amoun ts

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

548

0

0

2,827

0

4,005

2,827

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,827
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

4,005
0

(4,005)
0

0
3,374

0

0

(4,005)

4,005

0

0

(34)

34

0

0

0

(34)

(34)

(7,290)

7,290

0

0

0

(8,540)

(7,386)

7,324

(62)

(8,574)

(8,540)
(8,636)

(4,011)

7,324

(8,575)

(5,262)

3,375
(62)
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(4,005)
0

0

Cost of
Services

(4,005)

4,005
0

548

3,375
(62)

3,313

(1)

(1)
0

547

(62)
0
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Financial Assets and Liabilities – Financial Instruments

The Authority's treasury m anagem ent function is provided through a m anagem ent agreem ent by
Brighton & Hove C ity C ouncil.

Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrum ent are carried in the Authority’s Balance Sheet:
Categories of Fin an cial In stru men ts
Lon g Term

Cu rren t

31 M arch
2011

31 M arch
2012

31 M arch
2011

31 M arch
2012

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

In vestmen ts
Loans and receivables

0

0

5,677

8,050

Total Investmen ts

0

0

5,677

8,050

Deb tors
Loans and receivables

0

0

0

0

Financial assets carried at contract amounts

0

0

295

1,084

Total Deb tors

0

0

295

1,084

Borrowin gs
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

0

0

0

0

Total Borrowin gs

0

0

0

0

Creditors
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

0

0

0

0

Financial liabilities carried at contract amounts

0

0

(912)

(2,771)

Total Cred itors

0

0

(912)

(2,771)

The above table includes an investm ent with Lloyds Bank of £2.500m (£2.500m 2010/11), accrued
interest of £0.035m (£0.006m in 2010/11) and cash at bank of £5.515m (£3.171m 2010/11).

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses
The gains and losses in respect of financial instrum ents that are recognised in the C om prehensive
Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent are detailed in the following tables:
G ains and Losses in resp ect of Fin an cial In stru men ts

2011/12

Financial
Liabilities
M easured at
Am ortised Cost

£'000

T otals
Financial Assets
Loans and
Available for
Re ceivables
Sale Assets

£'000

£'000

£'000

Interest expense

0

0

0

0

Fee expense

0

0

0

0

T otal expense in Surplus /D eficit on the Provision
of Services

0

0

0

0

Interest income

0

(82)

0

(82)

Fee Income

0

0

0

0

T otal incom e in Surplus /D eficit on the Provision
of Services

0

(82)

0

(82)

Net (G ain) / Loss for th e year

0

(82)

0

(82)
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G ains and Losses in resp ect of Fin an cial In stru men ts
Financial
Liabilities
M easured at
Am ortised Cost

2010/11 Comp arative Figu res

£'000

T otals
Financial Assets
Loans and
Available for
Re ceivables
Sale Assets

£'000

£'000

£'000

Interest expense

0

0

0

0

Fee expense

0

0

0

0

T otal expense in Surplus /D eficit on the Provision
of Services

0

0

0

0

Interest income

0

(34)

0

(34)

Fee Income

0

0

0

0

T otal incom e in Surplus /D eficit on the Provision
of Services

0

(34)

0

(34)

Net (G ain) / Loss for th e year

0

(34)

0

(34)

The investment income has been generated through a combination of external investments and balances
held by Brighton & Hove City Council.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over
the remaining life of the instruments using the following assumptions:
•
where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months the fair value is taken to be the
principal outstanding;
•
the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.
The fair values calculated are as follows:
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
31 March 2011
Carrying
Amount
£'000

31 March 2012

Fair Value

Carrying
Amount
£'000

£'000

Fair Value
£'000

Borrowing

0

0

0

0

Total Borrowing

0

0

0

0

Creditors

(912)

(912)

(2,771)

(2,771)

Total Financial Liabilities

(912)

(912)

(2,771)

(2,771)

The Authority has not raised any borrowing in the year, consequently there is no borrowing
outstanding as at 31 March 2012.
Financial Assets
Financial Assets
31 March 2011

31 March 2012

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Loans and Receivables

2,506

2,506

2,535

2,535

Cash at Bank

3,171

3,171

5,515

5,515

295

295

1,084

1,084

5,972

5,972

9,134

9,134

Debtors
Total Loans and Receivables

Please note the above table includes cash equivalents. Short term debtors are carried at cost as this is
a fair approximation of their value. All financial assets are short term at 31st March 2012; therefore
the fair value of investments is equal to the carrying amount.
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N ature and extent of risks arising from f inancial instruments and how the
A uthority manages those risks
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:
•
credit risk – the possibility that other parties m ight fail to pay am ounts due to the
Authority;
•
liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority m ight not have funds available to m eet it
com m itm ents to m ake paym ents;
•
refinancing risk – the possibility that the Authority m ight be required to renew a financial
instrum ent on m aturity at disadvantageous interest rates or term s;
•
m arket risk – the possibility that financial loss m ight arise as a result of changes in such
m easures as interest rate m ovem ents.

Overall procedures for managing risk
The Authority’s overall risk m anagem ent procedures focus on the unpredictability of the financial
m arkets and implem enting restrictions to m inim ise the losses resulting from this risk. The procedures
for risk m anagem ent are set out through a legal fram ework in the Local Governm ent Act 2003 and
associated regulations. These require the Authority to com ply with the C IPFA Prudential C ode, the
C IPFA Treasury M anagem ent in the Public Services C ode of Practice and Investm ent Guidance issued
through the Act.
Overall these procedures require the Authority to m anage risk in the following ways:
•
by form ally adopting the requirem ents of the C ode of Practice;
•
by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years, lim iting
the Authority’s (a) overall borrowing, (b) m aximum and m inimum exposures to fixed and
variable rates, (c) m aximum and m inimum exposures regarding the m aturity structure of its
debt and (d) m axim um annual exposures to investm ents m aturing beyond a year;
•
by approving an investm ent strategy for the forthcom ing year setting out criteria for both
investing and selecting investm ent counterparties in compliance with the Governm ent
guidance.
These item s are reported with the annual Treasury M anagem ent Strategy (TMS), which outlines the
detailed approach to m anaging risk in relation to the Authority’s financial instrum ent exposure. This
strategy can be found on the Authority’s website. The strategy was approved by the Authority on 29
M arch 2011. Actual perform ance is also reported annually to M em bers.
The key issues within the strategy were:
•
the Authority would not raise borrowing during the year and therefore no borrowing lim its
or prudential indicators were set for 2011/12;
•
investm ent would only be m ade in institutions of the highest credit quality.
These policies are im plem ented through a m anagem ent agreem ent with Brighton & Hove City C ouncil.

C redit Risk
C redit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Authority’s custom ers. Deposits are not m ade with banks and financial institutions unless they m eet
the m inimum requirem ents set out in the Authority's investm ent strategy. Additional selection criteria
are also applied before an investm ent is m ade.
The m inim um criteria set out in the investm ent strategy for investm ent counterparties were:
•
m ajor banks and building societies to have a short-term rating that indicates the highest
credit quality;
•
m oney m arket funds to have a rating equal to "AAA" (triple A).
Investm ent counterparties also included other local authorities and governm ent institutions. All
investm ents were subject to a m axim um period dependent upon their credit rating.
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The following analysis summ arises the Authority’s potential m axim um exposure to credit risk,
based on experience of default assessed by the ratings agencies (Fitch) and the Authority’s
experience of its custom er collection levels. The table below is based on actual sum s invested
whereas the financial assets table, is based on carrying am ounts (i.e. it includes accrued interest ):
Exp osure to Cred it Risk
Am ount at
31 M arch 2012

Historical
E xperience of
D efault

Adjustm e nt for
M arket Conditions at
31 M arch 2012

Estim ated
M axim um
E xposure to
D efault
£'000

(b )

(c)

(a * c)

£'000

(a)
Dep osits with b anks and finan cial institutions
A AA rated counterparties

0

0.00%

0.00%

0

A A rated counterparties

0

0.00%

0.00%

0

2,500

0.08%

0.08%

2

786

0.00%

0.00%

0

A rated counterp arties
D ebtors
Total

3,286

2

The Authority does not expect any losses from non perform ance of any of its counterparties in
relation to deposits and bonds.
W hilst the current credit crisis in international m arkets continue to raise the overall possibility of
default, the Authority m aintains strict credit criteria for investm ent counterparties.
During the reporting period the Authority did not hold collateral as security for any investm ent.

Liquidity Risk
The Authority is projected to have sufficient funds to cover any day to day cash flow need. There is
therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to m eet its comm itm ents under financial
instrum ents.
The Authority m anages its liquidity position through the risk m anagem ent procedures detailed above
(the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investm ent
strategies), as well as through cash flow m anagem ent procedures required by the C ode of Practice.

Refinancing and Maturity Risk
The Authority m aintains an investm ent portfolio, with a proportion of the funds available at call. The
Authority is not exposed to refinancing and m aturity risk.
The approved prudential indicator lim its for investm ents m ade for a period greater than one year is a
key param eter used to address this risk. The Authority’s approved treasury and investm ent strategies
address the m ain risks and Brighton & Hove C ity Council's treasury m anagem ent team address the
operational risks within the approved param eters on behalf of the Authority. This includes m onitoring
the m aturity profile of investm ents to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Authority’s day to
day cash flow needs and that the spread of longer term investm ents provide stability of m aturities and
returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.
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The m atu rity an alysis of fin an cial assets is as follow s:
M atu rity An alysis o f Fin an c ial As sets
31 M arc h
2011
£'000
Less th an 1 yea r
More th an 1 year
Total

31 M arc h
2012
£'000

2 ,5 0 0

2 ,5 0 0

0

0

2,500

2,500

Th e above p rofiles are based on th e origin al prin cip al len t and n ot th e am ortised or carryin g am oun t.
Trade debtors and all trade and oth er p ayab les du e to be p aid in less th an on e year are not sh ow n in th e
table ab ov e.

M a rket R isk
a) Interest rate risk
Th e Auth ority is exp osed to in terest rate m ovem en ts on its investm ents. M ovem en ts in interest rates
have a com p lex imp act on th e Au th ority, dep en din g on how variab le and fix ed interest rates m ove across
differin g fin ancial in stru m en t p eriods. For in stan ce a rise in in terest rates w ou ld h ave th e follow ing
effec ts:
•
•

in vestm en ts at variab le rates - th e interest incom e credited to the Su rp lus / Deficit on th e
Provision of Services w ill rise;
in vestm en ts at fix ed rates - for lon g-term investm en ts th e fair valu e of the assets w ill fall.

C han ges in interest receivable on variab le rate investm en ts w ill b e p osted to the Su rp lus / Deficit on th e
Prov ision of services an d affect th e Au thority's General Fu n d balan ce.
Th e Au th ority h as a n umb er of strategies for m anagin g in terest rate risk. The annu al Treasu ry
M anagem en t Policy Statem en t draws together th e Auth ority’s prudential in dicators an d its exp ected
treasu ry op eration s, in clu din g an exp ectation of interest rate m ovem en ts. From th is statem ent a
pru den tial in dicator is set w h ich p rovides m ax imum and m inimum lim its for fixed and variab le interest
rate exp osure. Brigh ton & H ove C ity C oun cil's treasu ry m an agem ent team w ill m on itor m arket and
forecast in terest rates w ith in the year to adjust ex p osu res ap prop riately.
At 3 1 M arch 2 012 th e Au thority h ad n o investm ents sub ject to variab le in terest rates. A 1% rise in
in terest rates w ou ld th erefore h ave n o imp act on th e interest incom e credited, to the Su rplus / Deficit
on th e Provision of Services. There w ou ld be n o impact of a 1% rise in in terest rates on fair value as
in vestm en ts are all for less th an on e year.
A 1 % fall in in terest rates w ou ld sim ilarly h ave n o im pact on the fair valu e of investm en ts.
b) Price risk
Th e Au thority does n ot invest in eq u ity sh ares.
c) Foreign ex change risk
Th e Authority h as n o fin ancial assets or liab ilities den om in ated in foreign currencies and th erefore has n o
exp osu re to loss arisin g from m ovem ents in exch an ge rates.

Page 48

24

Debtors

The following table shows an analysis of the Authority’s short term debtors:
Short Term Deb tors
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

£’000

£’000

Central G overnment Bodies
O ther Local Authorities
Public Corporations an d Trading Funds

0

262

36

316

0

0

O ther Entities and Individuals

259

506

Total Sh ort Term Deb tors

295

1,084

Please note the comparative figure for other entities and individuals has been restated to treat the acquisition
transactions in relation to Capron House as a payment in advance rather that capitalising as a non current asset.
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Creditors

The following table shows an analysis of the Authority’s short term creditors:
Sh ort Term Cred itors
31 M arch 2011

31 M arch 2012

£’000

£’000

Central G overnment Bodies

(43)

(164)

(354)

(1,762)

(23)

0

O ther Entities and Individuals

(492)

(845)

Total Sh ort Term Cred itors

(912)

(2,771)

O ther Local Authorities
Public Corporations and Trading Funds
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External Audit Costs

In 2011/12 the Authority incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statem ent of
Accounts provided by the Authority’s external auditors:
E xternal Audit C osts
2010/11

2011/12

£'000

£'000

Fees payable to the Audit Commission with regard to external audit
services carried out by the appointed auditor

30

19

Total

30

19
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Inventories

The following table shows the total carrying am ount of inventories at the beginning and end of the
reporting period and the m ovem ent in year:
An alysis of M ovemen t in In ventories
Balan ce P u rch ases Recognised Balan ce P u rch ases Recognised
at 1 Ap ril
as an
at 31
as an
2010
Expen se in
M arch
Expen se in
Year
2011
Year
£'000
£’000
£’000
£'000
£’000
£’000

Balance
at 31
M arch
2012
£’000

Inventories Held for
Sale or D istribution in
the O rdinary Course of
O perations

0

28

(12)

16

27

(22)

21

Totals

0

28

(12)

16

27

(22)

21
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Publicity

U nder Section 5 of the Local Governm ent Act 1986, a N ational Park Authority is required to keep a
separate account of its expenditure on publicity. Publicity is defined in the Act as "any communication,
in whatever form , addressed to the public at large or to a section of the public".
The following table shows the expenditure on publicity:
P u b licity
2010/11

2011/12

£

£

Recruitment A dvertising

88,186

111,692

Public Relations

11,082

167,872

O ther Publicity and Marketing

83,605

62,513

182,873

342,077

Total

The cost of publicity has increased by £0.159m; this is due to the appointment of the Authority’s Head of
Communications post being delayed until January 2011 which led to a slippage in the commencement of
publicity related projects in 2010/11. The increase in staff advertising is due to the recruitment of the permanent
senior officers including the Chief Executive and others members of the senior management team in 2011/12.
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Accounting
Accounting Policies
___________________________________________________________________________

A. General
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the reported financial year, and its
position at the year end of the reporting period. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the
authority to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the
Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
The Code is based on approved accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) except where
these are inconsistent with specific statutory accounting requirements so as to present a true and fair view of
the financial position and transactions of the Authority. The Code also draws on approved accounting standards
issued by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and the UK Accounting Standards Board
where these provide additional guidance.
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost.
The accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Authority in preparing and presenting its Statement of Accounts. The Authority has selected accounting policies
and accounts for changes in accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Polices, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the
Code.
The Authority only changes its accounting policies when required by proper accounting practices or where the
change results in the Statement of Accounts providing more reliable and more relevant information about the
effects of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position, financial performance
or cash flows. Where the Authority changes an accounting policy, it applies the changes retrospectively, unless
the Code specifies transitional provisions that should be followed, by adjusting the opening balance of each
affected component of net worth for the earliest period presented and the other comparative amounts
disclosed for each prior period presented as if the new accounting policy had always been applied, except to the
extent that it is impracticable to determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change.
The Authority regularly reviews its accounting policies to ensure that they remain the most appropriate, giving
due weight to the impact that a change in accounting policy would have on comparability between periods. In
accordance with the Code, the Authority has disclosed the expected impact of new accounting standards that
have been issued but not yet adopted.

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and Prior Period Adjustments
The Authority accounts for changes in accounting estimates and errors in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public
sector are detailed in the Code.
The Authority uses accounting estimates where items within the Statement of Accounts cannot be measured
with precision but can only be estimated. In such cases, estimation techniques are adopted by the Authority to
calculate the estimated monetary amount corresponding to the correct measurement bases selected using the
latest available, reliable information.
The Authority revises accounting estimates if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimates were
based or as a result of new information or more experience. The effect of any change in accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively by including it in the surplus / deficit in the period of the change, if the change affects
the period only, or the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. If the change in
accounting estimate gives rise to changes in assets and liabilities, or relates to an item of net worth, it is
recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or net worth item in the period of
change. Changes in accounting estimates do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
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The Authority recognises prior period adjustments in respect of changes in accounting policies or to correct a
material error.
The Authority restates its Statement of Accounts where there are material errors. Where it is practicable to
determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative effect of an error, the Authority corrects material
prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of Statement of Accounts authorised for issue after their
discovery by restating the comparative amounts for prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred, or if
the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities
and net worth for the earliest prior period presented.
When it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects of an error on comparative information for
one or more prior periods presented, the Authority restates the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net
worth for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable (which may be the current
period).
Prior period items that arise from corrections and adjustments that are the natural result of estimates inherent
in the accounting process constitute normal transactions for the year in which they are identified, and are
accounted for accordingly by the Authority.

Accounting Concepts
The Code specifies many of the accounting policies and estimation techniques to be adopted for material items
within the Statement of Accounts. In preparing information for the Statement of Accounts, the Authority has
regard to the underlying assumptions, and qualitative characteristics of financial statements as set out in the
Code. The policies and estimation techniques have been selected to accord with the five qualitative
characteristics of financial information in relation to understandability, relevance, materiality, reliability and
comparability and the two underlying assumptions, accrual basis and going concern.
The Statement of Accounts provide information about the Authority’s financial position, financial performance
and cash flows. The Authority’s financial position can be measured by the level of assets, liabilities and reserves,
with its financial performance being measured by income and expenses and its cash flow by elements within
both the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet. Throughout the accounting
policies, reference is made to the bases on which assets, liabilities, reserves, income and expenses have been
recognised and measured.

Fair Value
International Financial Reporting Standards do not have a consistent definition of fair value; different definitions
apply in different circumstances. The table below shows the provisions the Authority applies regarding fair value.
Circumstance
Revenue
Recognition
Property, Plant
and Equipment
Leases
Inventories
Debtors
Creditors
Financial
Instruments

Fair Value
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms length transaction.
For land and buildings, fair value is the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
Fair value follows the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arms length transaction.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arms length transaction.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms length transaction.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms length transaction. For financial instruments, fair value is
the transaction price (i.e. the consideration) unless the transaction was not at arms length. If the
transaction is not based on market terms, a valuation technique is used to determine the
appropriate fair value for initial recognition of the instrument.

Value

The fair value definition for revenue recognition is also the general definition that the Authority applies unless a
more specific definition applies.
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B. Grants and Contributions
The Authority accounts for and provides disclosures in relation to grants and contributions in accordance with
IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, except where interpretations and
adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, grants and contributions are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments and the
grants or contributions will be received.
Grants and contributions relating to capital and revenue expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis and
are recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as income, except to the
extent that the grant or contribution has a condition(s) (as opposed to restrictions) that the Authority has not
satisfied.
Grants and contributions are credited to service revenue accounts, support services, and corporate accounts in
accordance with SeRCOP.
A grant or contribution that becomes repayable is accounted for by the Authority as a revision to an accounting
estimate (see General accounting policy). Repayment is first applied to any receipt in advance set up in respect
of the grant or contribution. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such receipt in advance, or where
no receipt in advance exists, the repayment is recognised within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense.
A grant or contribution may be received subject to a condition that it is returned to the transferor if a specified
future event does or does not occur. In these cases, a return obligation does not arise until such time as it is
expected that the condition will be breached and the Authority does not recognise a liability until that time.
General grants and contributions are disclosed as one item on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Grants and Contributions for Revenue Purposes
Revenue grants or contributions with conditions attached are initially credited to the Balance Sheet in the form
of creditor personal accounts at the point of receipt. Once the condition has been met, the grant or
contribution is transferred from the creditor personal account and recognised as income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Revenue grants or contributions with no conditions attached are recognised as income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement at the point of receipt.

Grants and Contributions for Capital Purposes
Where a capital grant or contribution has been received, and conditions remain outstanding at the Balance
Sheet date, the grant or contribution is recognised as part of the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance. Once the
condition has been met, the grant or contribution is transferred from the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
and recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, and the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has
been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution is transferred from the General Fund to the
Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer
is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not
been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution is transferred to the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account (within the Usable Reserves section of the Balance Sheet), reflecting its status as a capital
resource available to finance expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or
contribution (or part thereof) is transferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital
Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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When a capital grant or contribution becomes repayable and where conditions in respect of the grant or
contribution have not been met, the repayment is applied against the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance.
Where the grant or contribution has previously been recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (or to the extent that the repayment exceeds the balance in respect of the specific grant
or contribution in the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance), the repayment is recognised as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. As the repayment of grants for capital purposes is classed
as capital expenditure, the repayment is transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Adjustment Account.
This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where repayment of a grant relates to an
asset, consideration is given to the possible impairment of the asset. Depending on the conditions of the grant,
the repayment may be years later and thus impairment may have occurred.

C. Revenue Recognition
The Authority accounts for revenue recognition in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue and IPSAS 23 Revenue from
Non-Exchange transactions (Taxes and Transfers) except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public
sector are detailed in the Code.
This accounting policy does not apply to revenue arising from lease agreements (see separate accounting policy
for Leases).
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.

Sale of Goods
Revenue in relation to the sale of goods is recognised by the Authority when the following has been satisfied:

• the Authority transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the purchaser;
• the Authority retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• the Authority can measure the amount of revenue reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority;
• the Authority can measure the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction.

Provision of Services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the provision of services can be estimated reliably by the
Authority, revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the percentage of completion
method at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following
conditions are satisfied:
• the Authority can measure the amount of revenue reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority;
• the percentage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably;
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Supplies
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap between the date supplies
are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

Expenses
Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

Interest Receivable
In relation to interest receivable, revenue is recognised when:
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority;

Page 55

• the Authority can measure the amount of revenue reliably.
Subject to the recognition criteria above being met, interest is recognised as income on the basis of the effective
interest rate.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
In circumstances where the consideration has been received but the revenue does not meet the recognition
criteria described above, the Authority recognises a creditor (i.e. receipt in advance) in respect of that inflow of
resources. On satisfying the recognition criteria, revenue is recognised equal to the reduction of the carrying
amount of the liability.
In circumstances where revenue meets the recognition criteria described above but the consideration has not
been received, the Authority recognises a debtor in respect of that inflow of resources (see accounting policy
on debtors).

D. Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets
Services and support services are debited with a depreciation charge to record the cost of holding non current
assets which the service has used during the year:
The Authority is not required to charge the General Fund balance with depreciation. However, it is required to
make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to
an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance.
Depreciation is therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

E. Value Added Tax (VAT)
There are no IFRS or IPSAS specifically relating to VAT; the Authority accounts for VAT in accordance with
SSAP 5 Accounting for Value Added Tax except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are
detailed in the Code.
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded from income.
The amounts included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement exclude VAT that must be
passed on (where output tax exceeds input tax) or repaid (where input tax exceeds output tax) to HMRC. VAT
is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, whether of a capital or revenue nature,
only to the extent that it is irrecoverable.
The authority is able to recover VAT from HMRC, providing the partial exemption de-minimis is not breached.
The authority monitors the VAT partial exemption calculation on a regular basis, a financial model is retained
and updated with key proposals of expenditure or increases in exempt income to assess potential partial
exemption impact. If necessary appropriate measures are then taken to ensure the authority remains below the
de-minimis level.
The net amount due to or from HMRC in respect of VAT is included as part of creditors or debtors.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Authority defines cash as cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
demand.
The Authority defines cash equivalents as those cash flow investments which are no longer than three months
and represent the investment of cash surpluses lent to cover cash shortages. They are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

G. Current Assets
The Authority classifies an asset as current when:
• it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle (i.e. 12 months);
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• it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
• it expects to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period;
• the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
The Authority classifies all other assets as long term.

H. Inventories
The Authority accounts for inventories in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories, except where interpretations or
adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Authority includes all costs of
purchase, costs of conversions and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location or
condition in the cost of its inventories.
The cost of inventories is attributed to identified items of inventory. Where this is not possible, the Authority
assigns the cost of inventories using the first in, first out (FIFO) or weighted average cost formula. The
Authority uses the same cost formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use.
The Authority does not carry inventory in excess of amounts that are expected to be realised from their sale or
use. In circumstances where the cost of inventories are not recoverable (e.g. where inventories are damaged or
become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined), the cost is written down to the net
realisable value or current replacement cost. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be
written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value
or current replacement cost because of a change in economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is
reversed so the new carrying amount is the lower of cost and the revised net realisable value or is the lower of
cost and the revised current replacement cost. The reversal is limited to the amount of the original write-down.
When inventories are sold, exchanged or distributed, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expense
is recognised when the goods are distributed or related service is rendered. The amount of any write-down of
inventories (i.e. to net realisable value or current replacement cost) and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

I. Debtors
The Authority accounts for debtors in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, IPSAS 23 Revenue from Non Exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, except where
interpretations or adaptation to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
This accounting policy should be read in conjunction with the accounting policy for Revenue Recognition.
Debtors are recognised when ordered goods or services have been delivered or rendered by the Authority.
Debtors are recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable (typically in the form of
cash and cash equivalents) when revenue has been recognised (see accounting policy on Revenue Recognition).
If payment to the Authority is on deferred terms (i.e. beyond normal credit terms), the consideration receivable
is recognised initially at the cash price equivalent (that is the discounted amount). The difference between this
amount and the total payments received is recognised as interest revenue in the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In the event that consideration has been paid in advance of the receipt of goods or services, the Authority
recognises a debtor (i.e. payment in advance) in respect of that outflow of resources.

J. Current Liabilities
The Authority classifies a liability as current when:
• it expects to settle the liability within its normal operating cycle (i.e. 12 months);
• it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
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• the liability is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period;
• the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
The Authority classifies all other liabilities as long term.

K. Employee Benefits - Benefits Payable During Employment
The Authority accounts for benefits payable during employment in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits,
except where interpretations or adaptation to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.

Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include such
benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and non monetary benefits for current
employees. They are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the
Authority.
The Authority recognises short term accumulating compensated absences (i.e. annual leave and flexi leave) when
employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. These type of short
term compensated absences are measured as the additional amount that the Authority expects to pay as a
result of unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date including associated employer’s
national insurance and pension contributions. The obligation is recognised even if the compensating absences
have not yet vested at the reporting date. The possibility that employees may leave before they use an
accumulating non-vesting entitlement and their entitlement lost is taken into account in measuring the
obligation. The Authority makes an accrual for the cost of accumulating absences earned by employees but not
taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is
charged to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. The accrual is shown as a short
term provision on the Authority’s Balance Sheet.
The Authority recognises short term non accumulating absences (i.e. sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave
and jury service) when the absence occurs.
The cost of providing non monetary benefits (benefits in kind) is recognised according to the same principles as
benefits payable in cash; the amount recognised is the cost to the Authority of providing the benefit.

L. Employee Benefits – Post Employment Benefits
Benefits
The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits, except
where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
Employees of the Authority are entitled to become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by West Sussex County Council, according to the terms of their employment.
The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees
worked for the Authority.

The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme. The Authority accounts
for the scheme by:

•

Estimating the benefit that employees have earned (i.e. the liability of the pension fund attributable to the
Authority) – actuarial techniques are used to estimate the variable that will determine the ultimate cost of
providing post employment benefits and to determine how much benefit is attributable to the current and
prior periods.
The main actuarial assumptions for pension benefits comprise demographic assumptions such as mortality,
employee turnover and expected early retirement where the employee has the right under the scheme
rules. Financial assumptions such as the discount rate and salary and benefit levels are based on market
expectations, at the end of the reporting period, for the period over which the obligations are to be
settled.
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Benefits are attributed to periods of service in accordance with a scheme’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years,
benefits are attributed on a straight-line basis until the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits;
• Discounting the benefit to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation – the projected
unit credit method (i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover
rates etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees) is used to determine the present
value of the Authority’s defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service
cost.
The rate used to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields
at the Balance Sheet date on high quality corporate bonds; the currency and term of the corporate bonds
being consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post employment benefit obligation. The
interest cost is computed by multiplying the discount rate as determined at the start of the period by the
present value of the defined benefit obligation throughout that period, taking account of any material
changes in the obligation;
• Determining the fair value of any scheme assets (and reimbursement rights, if any) - the assets of the
pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:
o quoted securities – current bid price;
o unquoted securities – professional estimate;
o unitised securities – current bid price;
o property – market value.
Where no market price is available, the fair value of scheme assets is estimated by the actuary;
• Determining the amount of actuarial gains and losses – the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments (i.e. the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what
has actually occurred) are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; the
movement in actuarial gains and losses is recognised in the Pension Reserve;
• Where a plan has been changed, determining the resulting past service cost – past service cost usually
arises when the benefits payable under an existing defined benefit scheme are changed. Past service costs
are measured as the change in the liability resulting from the amendment. Where the amendment vests
immediately, the past service costs are recognised immediately regardless of the fact that the cost refers to
employee service in previous periods. Sometimes there is a vesting period, in which case the past service
cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The
amortisation schedule for past service cost is fixed when the amendment is introduced and is not be
revised unless there is a curtailment or settlement.
Where benefits payable under an existing defined benefit scheme attributable to past service are changed,
so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases, the resulting reduction in the defined
benefit liability shall be recognised as (negative) past service cost over the average period until the change
in benefits becomes vested. Where, at the same time as the reduction in liability, other changes are made
that result in an increase in the liability under the scheme for the same employees, the change is treated as
a single net change;
• Where a scheme has been curtailed or settled, determining the resulting gain or loss – gains and losses on
curtailment or settlement (i.e. events that change the liabilities and that are not covered by normal actuarial
assumptions) comprise any resulting changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation, any
resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets and any unamortised related past service costs. Gains
and losses on curtailments or settlements are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs.
Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the obligation is remeasured (and the related
plan assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions.
The Authority recognises the net total of the following amounts in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement except to the extent that the Code requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
• current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned in the current year charged against the relevant Cost of Services for which the employee worked;
• interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move one
year closer to being paid - charged to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure;
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•
•
•

the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights – the annual investment return on
the fund assets attributable to the Authority, based on an average of the expected long term return credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure;
past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years
of service earned in earlier years – charged to Non Distributed Costs within the Cost of Services;
gains / losses on curtailments or settlements – the result of actions to relieve the Authority of liabilities or
events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees - charged to Non
Distributed Costs within the Cost of Services.

The contributions paid to the pension fund (i.e. cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in
settlement of liabilities) are charged to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The Authority recognises the net total of the following amounts as a defined benefit liability in its Balance Sheet:
• the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date;
• minus any past service cost not yet recognised (i.e. past service costs that have not vested at the Balance
Sheet date);
• minus the fair value at the Balance Sheet date of scheme assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to
be settled directly.
Actuarial gains and losses (i.e. changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided
with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions)
are credited/ debited to the Pensions Reserve.
Where the defined benefit liability is negative (i.e. an asset), there is a limit on the amount than can be
recognised on the Balance Sheet as an asset. Where there is a negative liability (i.e. an asset), the amount
recognised in the Authority’s Balance Sheet has been determined in accordance with IAS 19 The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction paragraphs 58 to 58B and IFRIC
Interpretation 14.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. The Authority is not required to charge to revenue
(i.e. General Fund) expenditure in respect of liabilities for retirement benefits but instead is required to maintain
a Pensions Reserve to which the pension liabilities are charged. The amount that is charged to the General Fund
for providing pensions for employees is the amount payable for the year in accordance with the statutory
requirements governing the particular pension schemes or funds in which the Authority participates. Where this
amount does not match the amount charged to Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services for the year, the
difference is taken to the Pensions Reserve through the Movement in Reserves Statement; the notional debits
and credits for retirement benefits are removed and replaced with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund
and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on
the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any employee are accrued in the
year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same accounting policies as are applied to
the Local Government Pension Scheme.

M. Creditors
The Authority accounts for creditors in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, IPSAS 23 Revenue from Non Exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, except where
interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
This accounting policy should be read in conjunction with the accounting policy for Revenue Recognition.
Creditors are recognised when ordered goods or services have been delivered or rendered to the Authority.
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Creditors are recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration payable (typically in the form of
cash and cash equivalents).
If payment by the Authority is on deferred terms (i.e. beyond normal credit terms), the consideration payable is
recognised initially at the cash price equivalent (i.e. the discounted amount). The difference between this amount
and the total payments is recognised as interest expense in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In the event that consideration is received but the revenue does not meet the revenue recognition criteria (see
accounting policy on Revenue Recognition), the Authority recognises a creditor (i.e. receipt in advance) in
respect of that inflow of resources.

N. Provisions
The Authority accounts for provisions in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
The Authority recognises a provision where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a present
obligation (legal or constructive) that requires settlement by either a transfer of economic benefits or service
potential to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
In cases where it is not clear whether there is a present obligation, the Authority deems that a past event gives
rise to a present obligation if, taking account of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that a present
obligation exists at the reporting date.
The amount recognised as a provision by the Authority is the best estimate of the present value of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The risks and uncertainties that
surround many events and circumstances are taken into account in reaching the best estimate of a provision.
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are also reflected in the amount of a
provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the Authority sets the amount of a provision at the
present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. The unwinding of the
discount due to the passage of time is recognised as interest within the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where the Authority has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. The Authority also recognises provisions for restructuring
costs where they meet the recognition criteria. However, provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
In the case where no reliable estimate can be made, a liability exists that cannot be recognised, that liability is
disclosed as a contingent liability by the Authority. (See accounting policy on contingent liabilities).
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes
aware of the obligation.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where it becomes more likely that a
transfer of economic benefits will not be required or a higher or lower settlement will be made, the provision is
reversed or adjusted respectively in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services within the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
For each class of provision, the Authority discloses a brief description of the nature of the obligation and the
expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits or service potential, an indication of the
uncertainties about the amount or timing of those outflows, and the amount of any expected reimbursement,
stating the amount of any asset that has been recognised for that expected reimbursement.

O. Reserves
The Authority considers amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions as reserves.
The Authority holds a number of reserves including earmarked reserves which are used to set aside amounts
for specific policy purposes, balances which represent resources set aside for purposes such as general
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contingencies and cash flow management, reserves for specific statutory purposes and reserves to comply with
proper accounting practice.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service
in that year in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non current assets, retirement and employee
benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority; these reserves are covered in the relevant
accounting policies.
The Authority carries out an annual review of the reserves to ensure they are still required and are set at the
appropriate level.
Any carry forward of approved underspends are held on the Balance Sheet as a reserve.

P. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The Authority accounts for contingent liabilities and assets in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed
in the Code.

Contingent Liabilities
The Authority recognises a contingent liability when it has either:

• A possible obligation which has arisen from past events whose existence has been confirmed by the
occurrence of one or more certain future events not wholly within the Authority’s control;
• A present obligation has arisen from past events but it has not been recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed as a note to the accounts,
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.
The Authority continually assesses contingent liabilities to determine whether an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential has become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits or service potential will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, the Authority recognises a provision in the financial statements of the period in which the
change in probability occurs (see accounting policy for Provisions). In cases where a liability exists but a reliable
estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is still disclosed.
Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote, the Authority discloses, for each class of
contingent liability, a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability and where practicable, an estimate
of its financial effect measured using the principles set out in the Code, an indication of the uncertainties relating
to the amount or timing of any outflow and the possibility of any reimbursement. Where it is not practicable to
disclose information, the Authority discloses that fact.
Where disclosure of some or all of the information is expected to prejudice seriously the position of the
Authority in a dispute with other parties on the subject matter of the contingent liability, the Authority does not
disclose the information, but instead discloses the general nature of the dispute, together with the fact that, and
reason why, the information has not been disclosed.

Contingent Assets
The Authority recognises a contingent asset when it has a possible asset that has arisen from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the Authority’s control.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed as a note to the accounts,
where an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised if it
is not probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefit or service potential or it cannot be reliably
measured.
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The Authority continually assesses contingent assets to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential
will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, a debtor (or cash where consideration has been
received) and the related revenue are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change
occurs.
Where an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable the Authority discloses, for each class of
contingent asset, the nature of the contingency, a brief description, an estimate of its financial effect, an
indication of the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow and the possibility of any
reimbursement. Where it is not practicable to disclose information, the Authority discloses that fact.
Where disclosure of some or all of the information is expected to prejudice seriously the position of the
Authority in a dispute with other parties on the subject matter of the contingent asset, the Authority does not
disclose the information, but instead discloses the general nature of the dispute, together with the fact that, and
reason why, the information has not been disclosed.

Q. Overheads
Overheads and Support Services
The Authority fully recharges the costs of management and administration and support services to those
services that benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the Service
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP). The Authority uses the total absorption costing principle. The full cost
of overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the
exception of:
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multifunctional, democratic
organisation;
• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early.
These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of cost of services.
All support service costs are charged to their users using the most appropriate apportionment base.
The cost of service management is apportioned to the accounts representing the activities managed.
If any overheads are not charged or apportioned, the reason for not doing so, together with the nature of the
overhead and the amount, is disclosed in a note to the accounts.

R. Property, Plant and Equipment
The Authority accounts for non current assets in accordance with IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, except
where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Recognition
The Authority recognises (and capitalises) expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property,
plant and equipment as an asset on its Balance Sheet provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Such items include the initial costs of acquisition and construction and costs incurred
subsequently to enhance, replace part of or service the asset. Expenditure that does not meet these recognition
criteria is charged to the relevant cost of service within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as it is incurred.
The Authority does not capitalise subsequent costs arising from the day to day servicing of an asset (i.e. labour
costs and consumables), commonly known as “repairs and maintenance” if they do not meet the above
recognition principle.
The Authority has a de-minimis level of £5,000 for land and buildings and vehicles, plant and equipment; items of
expenditure below this de-minimis level are charged to the relevant cost of services within the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year it is incurred. The Authority has no de-minimis level for
enhancement expenditure and therefore all enhancement expenditure is capitalised.
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Initial Measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured at its cost and is
capitalised on an accruals basis. The measurement of costs comprises purchase price, any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Authority, and the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the cash price
equivalent at the date when the asset is recognised.
The Authority currently holds only vehicles, furniture, plant and equipment and assets under construction as
non current assets on its Balance Sheet. As vehicles, furniture, plant and equipment is held at historic cost and
assets under construction is also held at historic cost and revaluation only takes place when the asset becomes
operational, no revaluation of assets has taken place. Therefore, no accounting policy has been disclosed for:

• the measurement of property, plant and equipment after recognition;
• the impairment of property, plant and equipment.
The Authority has not disposed of any assets since it became fully operational therefore,, no accounting policy
has been disclosed for the de-recognition of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation
Depreciation is applied to all property, plant and equipment, regardless of whether held at historical cost or
revalued amount, except for land where it can be demonstrated that the asset has an unlimited useful life.
The Authority does not charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but does charge a full year’s depreciation
in the year of disposal.
The Authority does not depreciate assets until they are available for use (i.e. when they are in location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Authority).

S. Leases
The Authority accounts for leases in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, except where interpretations or
adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.

Lease Classification
The Authority classifies leases as either finance leases or operating leases based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
The Authority uses the examples of situations in the Code to aid the classification; the example situations that
individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease in the Code are:
• the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;
• the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the
fair value so as to make it reasonably certain the option will be exercised;
• the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset;
• the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of the fair value of the
leased asset;
• the leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications.
As the example situations are not always conclusive, the Authority applies the policy that if it is clear from other
features that the lease does not transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership, the lease is
classified as an operating lease. Lease classification is made at the inception of the lease.
Leases of land and buildings are classified as finance or operating leases in the same way as leases of other assets.
However, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classification. When the land has an indefinite economic life, the land element is normally
classified as an operating lease unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term as an
important consideration is that land normally has an indefinite life. A payment made on entering into or
acquiring a leasehold that is accounted for as an operating lease represents prepaid lease payments that are
amortised over the lease term in accordance with the pattern of benefits provided.
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When accounting for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are allocated between the land
and the buildings elements in proportion to their relative fair values. Where the amount that would initially be
recognised for the land element is immaterial, the land and buildings are treated as a single unit for lease
classification.
The Authority only has one lease as a lessee which has been classified as an operating lease; therefore the
accounting policy for lessee finance leases is not disclosed. In addition the Authority does not have any leases as
a lessor therefore no accounting policy is disclosed for leases where the Authority is the lessor. The Authority
does not have any arrangements containing a lease and therefore no policy is disclosed in relation to this.

Lessee Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a
straight line basis over the life of the lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a
rent free period at the commencement of the lease).

T. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
The Authority accounts for events after the reporting period in accordance with IAS 10 Events after the Reporting
Period, except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is
made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.
The Authority adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events (i.e. those
events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period) after the reporting
period; however, it does not adjust the amounts for non-adjusting events (i.e. those events that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting period). The Authority reflects in its financial statements events after
the reporting period up to the date the accounts were authorised for issue. Events taking place after the date of
authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
The financial statements of the Authority are authorised for issue in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003. The date the accounts are authorised for issue is:
Un-audited Accounts

Audited Accounts (where
opinion issued in advance of
conclusion of audit)
Audited accounts (where no
opinion issued prior to the
conclusion of audit)
Audited accounts (where
opinion previously issued prior
to the conclusion of audit

The date on which the responsible finance officer certifies that the accounts give a
true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position and financial performance in
advance of approval.
The date on which the responsible finance officer re-certifies that the accounts give a
true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position and financial performance.
the date on which the responsible finance officer re-certifies that the accounts give a
true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position and financial performance.
the date on which the responsible finance officer re-certifies that the accounts give a
true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position and financial performance.

In accordance with the regulations, the Authority prepares a Statement of Accounts by 30 June following the
end of the reporting period which is approved by the Chief Finance Officer. Following the audit, the Statement
of Accounts are approved by members and signed by the chair of the Audit Committee by 30 September. The
Authority also publishes its audited Statement of Accounts by 30 September following the end of the reporting
period. In the event that the audit has not been completed by this date, the Authority publishes its un-audited
Statement of Accounts by 30 September following the reporting period and its audited Statement of Accounts
as soon as practicable thereafter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
the South Downs National Park Authority
__________________________________________________________________________________

Opinion on the Authority financial statements
I have audited the financial statements of South Downs National Park Authority for the year ended 31 March
2012 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves
Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement
and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12.
This report is made solely to the members of South Downs National Park Authority in accordance with Part II
of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements,
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. My responsibility is
to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Finance Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. I read all the financial and non-financial information in the explanatory foreword to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion the financial statements:

•
•

give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Downs National Park Authority as at 31 March
2012 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, the information given in the explanatory foreword for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters
Matters on which I report by exception
I report to you if:

•
•

in my opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007;
I issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998;
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•
•

I designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation as one that requires
the Authority to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response; or
I exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

I have nothing to report in these respects.

Other matters on which I am required to conclude
I am required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy myself that the Authority has made
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. I am also
required by the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice to report any matters that prevent me being
satisfied that the audited body has put in place such arrangements.
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and, having regard to the guidance
issued by the Audit Commission in October 2011, I have considered the results of the following:

•
•
•

my review of the annual governance statement;
the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates, to the extent the results of the work have an
impact on my responsibilities [include if relevant]; and
my locally determined risk-based work to consider the financial controls the Authority has developed to
gain assurance over the income and expenditure arising from determination of small scale planning
applications by the Authority’s 15 local planning authority partners.

As a result, I have concluded that there are no matters to report.

Certificate
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of South Downs National Park Authority in accordance
with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit
Commission.

Helen Thompson
District Auditor
Audit Commission
Ground floor
Bicentennial Building
Southern Gate
Chichester
West Sussex
PO19 8EZ
17 September 2012
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Glossary
__________________________________________________________________________________

Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Authority in
preparing and presenting its financial statements.

Accruals Basis
The accruals basis is the recognition of items as assets, liabilities, income and expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria. The accruals basis of accounting requires the non-cash effects of transactions
to be reflected in the financial statements for the reporting period in which those effects are experienced and
not in the period in which any cash is received or paid.

Actuarial Gains and Losses
Actuarial gains and losses comprise:
• experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has
actually occurred), and
• the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Amortised Cost of a Financial Asset or Financial Liability
Liability
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method (i.e. a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period) of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through
the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Asset
An asset is a resource controlled by the Authority as a result of past events and from which future economic or
service potential is expected flow to the Authority.

Audit of Financial Statements
An audit is an examination by an independent expert of an organisation’s financial affairs to check that the
relevant legal obligations and codes of practice have been followed.

Available
Available for Sale Financial Asset
An available for sale financial assets is a non derivative financial asset that is not classified as loans and
receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority as at the Balance
Sheet date.

Benefits Payable during Employment
Benefits payable during employment covers:
• Short-term employee benefits, such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and
non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees.
• Benefits earned by current employees but payable 12 months or more after the end of the reporting period,
such as long-service leave or jubilee payments and long-term disability benefits.

Budget
A budget expresses the Authority’s service delivery plans and capital programmes in monetary terms.
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Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

Capital Expenditure
Capital expenditure is expenditure on the acquisition of an asset that will be used to provide services beyond
the reporting period or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.

Capital Financing Requirement
The capital financing requirement is the capital investment funded from borrowing which has yet to be repaid.

Capital Programme
The capital programme is a financial summary of the capital projects that the Authority intends to carry out
over a specified time.

Capital Reserves
Capital reserves represent resources earmarked to fund capital schemes as part of the Authority’s capital
investment strategy.

Carrying Amount
The carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the Balance Sheet after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cash
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.

Cash Equivalents
Cash Equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flows
Cash flows are the Inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting
period.

Comprehensive Income
Income and Expenditure Statement
The comprehensive income and expenditure statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from
taxation.

Contingent
Contingent Asset
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Authority.

Contingent
Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
• it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or
• the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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Corporate and Democratic Core
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because
they are elected multi-purpose authorities. The cost of these activities are thus over and above those which
would be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services.
There is therefore no logical basis for apportioning these costs to services.
Corporate and democratic core includes two categories of expenditure; Democratic Representation and
Management (DRM) and Corporate Management costs. DRM includes all aspects of members’ activities and
Corporate Management includes activities that provide the infrastructure that allows services to be provided
(e.g. Chief Executive, external audit, corporate level financing and treasury management).

Cost
Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire
an asset at the time of acquisition or construction.

Costs to Sell
Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (or disposal group),
excluding finance costs.

Creditors
Creditors are financial liabilities arising from the contractual obligation to pay cash in the future for goods or
service or other benefits that have been received or supplied and have been invoiced or formally agreed with
the supplier.

Current Asset
A current asset is an asset that is intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle; the asset is held
primarily for the purpose of trading or the Authority expects to realise the asset within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Current Liability
A current liability is an amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next reporting
period; examples are creditors and cash overdrawn.

Current Replacement Cost
Current replacement cost is the cost the Authority would incur to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

Current Service Cost (Pensions)
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current period.

Curtailment
For a defined benefit scheme, curtailment is an event that reduces the expected years of future service of
present employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their
future service. For example, it covers the additional cost arising from the early payment of pension benefits
when an employee is made redundant.

Debtors
Debtors are financial assets not traded in an active market with fixed or determinable payments that are
contractual rights to receive cash or cash equivalents.

Defined Benefit Plans
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Defined Contribution Plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Authority pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
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contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

Depreciation
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful amount.

Effective Interest Rate
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability.

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Authority in exchange for service rendered by
employees.

Estimation Techniques
Estimation techniques are the methods adopted by the Authority to arrive at estimated monetary amounts,
corresponding to the measurement bases selected, for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves

Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events
after the reporting period), and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the
reporting period).

Exceptional Items
Exceptional items are material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary
activities of the Authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give
fair presentation of the accounts.

Exchange Transactions
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use
of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets
For a funded defined benefit scheme, expected rate of return on pension assets is the average rate of return,
including both income and changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of
the related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.

Expenses
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period in the form of
outflows or consumption of assets or increases of liabilities that result in decreases in reserves. Expenses
include expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary activities and losses such as revaluation of non current
assets.

Fair Value
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction.

Finance Lease
A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset.
Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
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Financial Asset
A financial asset is any asset that is:
• cash
• an equity instrument of another entity
• a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity, or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity,
or
• a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments; in practice this is not applicable
to local authorities.

Financial Liability
A financial liability is any liability that is:
• a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the
entity, or
• a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments; in practice this is not applicable
to local authorities.

Financial Asset or Financial Liability at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is one that meets the following conditions.
It is classified as held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:
• acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term
• on initial recognition part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking, or
• a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

Financial Instrument
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial
liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables and the most complex ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. Typical financial
instruments are:
Liabilities
• Trade payables and other payables
• Borrowings
• Financial guarantees
Assets
• Bank deposits
• Trade receivables
• Loans receivable
• Other receivables and advances
• Investments
• Derivatives
• Swaps
• Forwards
• Options
• Embedded derivatives
• Debt instruments with embedded swaps
• Debt instruments with embedded options.
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Financial Reporting Standards (FRS)
Financial reporting standards advise the accounting treatment and disclosure requirements of transactions so
that the Authority’s accounts present a true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position.

Financing Activities
Financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the principal received from
or repaid to external providers of finance.

Financing Costs Reserve
The financing costs reserve is used to meet future projected investment income losses.

General Fund Balance
The General Fund balance shows the resources available to meet future running costs for non-housing services.

Going Concern
Going Concern defines that the functions of the Authority will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

Government Grants
Government grants are grants made by the government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to
support the cost of the provision of the Authority’s services. These grants may be directed towards the cost of
particular schemes or used to support the revenue spend of the Authority.

Grants and Contributions
Grants and contributions are assistance in the form of transfers of resources to an Authority in return for past
or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operation of activities. They exclude those forms of
assistance which cannot reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions with organisations which
cannot be distinguished from the normal service transactions of the Authority.

Historical Cost
Historical cost is the carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 (i.e. b/f from 31 March 2007) or at the date
of acquisition, whichever date us the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment (if
applicable).

Impairment Loss
An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Income
Income is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those
inflows or enhancements of assets or decreases of liabilities result in an increase in reserves. Income includes
both revenue arising in the course of ordinary activities and gains such as the revaluation of non current assets.

Insurance Reserve
The insurance reserve is used to cover liabilities under policy excesses and to finance any claims for small risks
not insured externally. In addition, the Authority carries a substantial amount of self insurance financed from this
reserve. An element of the reserve is used to fund training on risk management to support delivery of the risk
management strategy and to fund measures to address operational hazards/risks identified.

Interest Cost (Pensions)
The interest cost is the expected increase during the period in the present value of the scheme liabilities
because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.

International Accounting Standards (IAS)
International Accounting Standards are standards for the preparation and presentation of financial statements
created by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC). They were first written in 1973, and
stopped when the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) took over their creation in 2001.
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International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
International Financial Reporting Standards advise the accounting treatment and disclosure requirements of
transactions so that the Authority’s accounts present fairly the financial position of the Authority.

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
The IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly called the IFRIC) is the interpretative body of the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)
International Accounting Standards (IAS) adapted to meet public sector requirements.

Inventories
Inventories are assets:
• in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process
• in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of
• services
• held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations, or
• in the process of production for sale or distribution.

Investing Activities
Investing activities are activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other
investments not included in cash equivalents.

Lease
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series of payments
the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Liability
A liability is a present obligation of the Authority arising from past events, the settlement of which is expected
to result in an outflow from the Authority of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than:
• those that the entity intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which shall be classified as held for
trading, or
• those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, which shall be classified as available for sale.

Material
Omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the
decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the
nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of
the item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor.

Movement in Reserves Statement
Statement
The movement in reserves statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Authority, analysed unto usable reserves and other reserves.

National Park Grant
National Park grant is a non ring fenced government grant which can be used by the Authority to finance
revenue expenditure on any service.

Page 76

Net Realisable value
The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Net Worth
The total funds, balances and reserves (both usable and unusable reserves) held by the Authority.

Non Current Asset
A non current asset is an asset that does not meet the definition of a current asset.

Non Distributed Costs
Non distributed costs are overheads for which no service benefits; for example pensions arising from
discretionary added years service.

Non Exchange Transactions
Non exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non exchange transaction,
an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange,
or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Operating Lease
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Other comprehensive income and expenditure comprises items of expense and income (including
reclassification adjustments) that are not recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as
required or permitted by the Code. Examples include changes in revaluation surplus; actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit plans; and gains and losses on re-measuring available-for-sale financial assets.

Operating Activities
Operating activities are the activities of the Authority that are not investing or financing activities.

Past Service Cost (Pensions)
The past service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service
in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment
benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are
introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced).

Pension Reserve
The pensions reserve is a specific accounting mechanism used to reconcile the payments made for the year to
various statutory pension schemes in accordance with those schemes’ requirements and the net charge in the
Authority’s recognised liability under IAS 19, Retirement Benefits, for the same period. A transfer is made to or
from the Pensions Reserve to ensure that the charge to the General Fund balance reflects the amount required
to be raised in taxation. The reserve normally is at the same level as the pensions liability carried on the top half
of the Balance Sheet.

Post Employment Benefits
Post employment benefits cover not only pensions but also other benefits payable post employment such as life
insurance and medical care.

Prior Period Errors
Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the Authority’s financial statements for one or
more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that:
• was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue, and
• could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and
presentation of those financial statements.
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Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies, oversights or
misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets (i.e. assets with physical substance) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and which are
expected to be used during more than one period.

Provision
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

Qualified Valuer
A qualified valuer is a person conducting the valuations who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and having sufficient current local, national knowledge of the particular market, and the skills and
understanding to undertake the valuation competently.

Recoverable Amount (in respect of assets)
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell (i.e. not selling price) and its value in use.

Related Party
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if the related party entity and
another entity are subject to common control. Related parties include:
• an entity that has an interest in the Authority that gives it significant influence over the Authority; and
• key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel.

Related Party Transaction
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of
whether a price is charged. Related party transactions exclude transactions with any other entity that is a
related party solely because of its economic dependence on the Authority or the government of which it forms
part.

Reporting Period
The reporting period is the length of time covered by the financial statements.

Reserves
Reserves are the residual interest in the assets of the Authority after deducting all its liabilities.

Residual Value
The residual value is the estimated amount that the Authority would currently obtain from disposal of the asset,
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life.

Revenue
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those
inflows result in an increase in net worth.

Revenue Expenditure
Revenue expenditure is the day to day running costs relating to the reporting period irrespective of whether or
not the amounts due have been paid. Examples are salaries, wages, materials, supplies and services.

Settlements (Pensions)
Settlements are an irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary
responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the assets
used to effect the settlement. For example, adjustments to the pension liability arising from bulk transfers of
employees.
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Short Term
Term Compensated Absences
Short term compensated absences are periods during which an employee does not provide services to the
employer, but benefits continue to be paid. Compensated absences may be accumulating or non-accumulating.
Accumulating absences are those that are carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current
period entitlement is not used in full. For example, annual leave, flexitime and time in lieu would usually be
accumulating. Accumulating absences may be either vesting or non-vesting. Where vesting, employees who leave
are entitled to a cash payment in respect of any unused entitlement; where non-vesting, benefits lapse if an
employee leaves before the vesting date.

Short Term
Term Employee Benefits
enefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that fall due wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Short-term employee
benefits include:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions
• short-term compensated absences
• bonuses and similar payments
• non-monetary benefits

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
The surplus or deficit on the provision of services is the total of income less expenses, excluding the
components of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Temporary Borrowing
Temporary borrowing is a sum of money borrowed for a period of less than one year.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are benefits that are payable as a result of either an employer’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy in exchange for those benefits. They are often lump-sum payments, but also include enhancement of
retirement benefits; and salary until the end of a specified notice period if the employee renders no further
service that provides economic benefits to the Authority.

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total comprehensive income and expenditure comprises all components of Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services and of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Usable Reserves
Usable reserves are those reserves that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation.

Useful
Useful Life
The useful life is the period which an asset is expected to be available for use by the Authority.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT is an indirect tax levied on most business transactions and on many goods and some services. Input tax is
VAT charged on purchases. Output tax is VAT charged on sales.
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